### **RESOLUTION NO. 2023-137**

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELK GROVE RATIFYING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF ELK GROVE AND THE ELK GROVE POLICE OFFICERS' ASSOCIATION DATED JULY 1, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2027 AND ADOPTING A REVISED CITYWIDE SALARY AND STEP SCHEDULE

**WHEREAS**, all City labor relations have been regulated by the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA) and the City-promulgated Employee Employer Relations Policy established by Resolution No. 2001-40, as well as the current City of Elk Grove Personnel Rules and Regulations dated January 1, 2021; and

**WHEREAS**, the current Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Elk Grove (City) and the Elk Grove Police Officers' Association (EGPOA) expires on June 30, 2023; and

**WHEREAS**, the City and EGPOA have met and conferred in good faith, and reached agreement on a successor Memorandum of Understanding regarding rates of pay, benefits, and other terms and conditions of employment for the term of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2027; and

**WHEREAS**, the members of EGPOA ratified the Memorandum of Understanding on May 30, 2023.

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED** that the City Council of the City of Elk Grove hereby:

- 1) Ratifies the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Elk Grove and the Elk Grove Police Officers' Association dated July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2027, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by this reference; and
- 2) Adopts a revised Salary and Step Schedule as shown in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated by this reference.

**PASSED AND ADOPTED** by the City Council of the City of Elk Grove this 28<sup>th</sup> day of June 2023

BOBBIE SINGH-ALLEN, MAYOR of the CITY OF ELK GROVE

ATTEST:

SON LINDGREN, CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

JONATHAN P. HOBBS, CITY ATTORNEY

**EXHIBIT A** 

# **MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING**

# **Between**

# **ELK GROVE POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION**



and

**CITY OF ELK GROVE** 



Effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2027

# **Table of Contents**

1. Preamble       5         2. Recognition       5         3. Definitions       5         ARTICLE II CITY RIGHTS       6         ARTICLE III - NO STRIKE       7         ARTICLE IV - EGPOA RIGHTS       7         1. EGPOA Release Time Bank       7         2. Critical Incident Response       8         3. Payroll Deduction       8         4. Non-Discrimination       8
3. Definitions
ARTICLE II CITY RIGHTS
ARTICLE III – NO STRIKE
ARTICLE IV - EGPOA RIGHTS
EGPOA Release Time Bank     Z     Critical Incident Response     S     Payroll Deduction     S
Critical Incident Response
3. Payroll Deduction
•
4. Non-Discrimination
ARTICLE V SALARY AND OTHER COMPENSATION
1. Establishment of Salary Ranges
2. Placement of Employees into Salary Ranges11
3. Advancement through Salary Range12
4. Education Incentive Pay13
5. Assignment Pay14
6. Training Officer Pay - Non-Sworn Employees
7. Support Services Lead Pay15
8. Canine Assignment Pay15
9. Court Time
10. Call Out Pay
11. On Call and Call Back Pay
12. Deferred Compensation
13. Market Study
ARTICLE VI – RETIREMENT18
ARTICLE VII HEALTH AND WELFARE
1. Health, Dental and Vision Insurance Coverage19

Short Term Disability Program	20
4. Long Term Disability Program	20
5. Flexible Spending Account	20
6. Health Retirement Account	20
7. Employee Assistance Program	21
8. Health Benefits Advisory Committee	21
ARTICLE VIII HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	21
1. Work Shifts and Work Schedules	21
2. Rest Periods	21
3. Meal Period	22
4. Overtime	22
5. Shift Trades	23
6. Annual Patrol Shift Bidding	23
ARTICLE IX – HOLIDAYS	24
Non-Shift Employees	24
2. Shift Employees	25
ARTICLE X LEAVES25	
1. Annual Leave	25
2. Bereavement Leave	27
ARTICLE XI GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	27
1. Definition	27
2. Time Limits	27
3. Presentation	28
4. Procedure	28
ARTICLE XII – DISCIPLINE PROCEDURE	29
1. Policy	29
2. Definition	30
3. Persons Authorized to Initiate Disciplinary Action	30
4. Application of Appeal Procedure	30
6. Preliminary Notice of Proposed Discipline	31
7. Skelly Meeting	31
8. Appeal of Disciplinary Action	32
Assessment but a see City of Elli Conservation	

ARTICLE XIII – REDUCTION IN FORCE	33
1. Reduction in Force	33
ARTICLE XIV – EMPLOYEE STATUS	36
Employment Status – Public Safety Officers' Procedural Bill of Rights (Sworn Personnel and Dispatchers)	36
ARTICLE XV – EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION	38
1. Performance Evaluation	38
2. Authority to Prepare Performance Evaluations	38
3. Frequency and Distribution of Performance Evaluations	38
4. Review with the Employee	38
5. Salary Step Advancement	39
ARTICLE XVI – ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENTS	39
1. Tuition Reimbursement	39
2. Quarter Master Program	40
ARTICLE XVII – MISCELLANEOUS	40
Joint Labor-Management Committee	40
2. Voluntary Wellness Program	40
3. Personnel Rules	41
4. Meeting and Conferring During Term of Memorandum of Understanding	41
5. Savings Clause	41
6. Total Agreement	41
ARTICLE XVIII TERM	42
1. Term of Agreement	42
2. Signature Clause	42

Attachment A -- POST Incentive Request Form

### ARTICLE I -- RECOGNITION AND COVERAGE

#### 1. Preamble

This Memorandum of Understanding, hereinafter referred to as "Agreement", entered into by the City of Elk Grove, hereinafter referred to as "City", or "the employer", pursuant to Section 3500 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California and the Elk Grove Police Officers Association, hereinafter referred to as "EGPOA" has as its purpose the promotion of harmonious labor relations between the City and the EGPOA; establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences; and the establishment of rates of pay, hours of work, and other terms and conditions of employment.

It is understood and agreed that this Agreement supersedes and replaces all previous practices on these points by and between the City and the EGPOA. Where City ordinances and policies that may conflict with the Agreement exist, the Agreement shall prevail.

The term "Agreement" as used herein means the written agreement provided under section 3505.1 of the Government Code.

# 2. Recognition

The EGPOA is recognized as the exclusive representative as provided in the City's Employer-Employee Relations Rules for all employees in the classifications listed below. Classifications may be added or deleted from the EGPOA pursuant to the City's Employer-Employee Relations Rules.

Police Officer
Police Sergeant
Animal Services Officer
911 Call Taker
Dispatcher
Dispatch Supervisor
Forensic Investigator
Supervising Forensic Investigator
Senior Animal Service Officer

### 3. Definitions

The following are definitions for terms commonly used throughout this Agreement:

- A. "City Manager" -- the City Manager or the City Manager's designated representative.
- B. "City Policies and Procedures" -- Policies and procedures of the City of Elk Grove.
- C. "City" -- the City of Elk Grove.
- D. "Classification", "Class", or "Job Classification" -- one or more positions with similar duties, knowledge, skills and abilities given the same title. Example: Police Officer.
- E. "Compound" or "compounding" -- the method of calculating increases sequentially instead of individually.

- F. "Day(s)" -- calendar days, unless specified otherwise.
- G. "Department" -- the Elk Grove Police Department.
- H. "Education Incentive Pay" -- Additional salary paid to an employee who qualifies for one or more elements of Education Incentive Pay pursuant to this Agreement. Example: An employee with a Bachelor of Arts degree shall receive Education Incentive Pay of 5%.
- I. "EGPOA" -- Elk Grove Police Officers Association.
- J. "Employee" -- a salaried employee of the City of Elk Grove.
- K. "General Orders" -- Policies and procedures of the Police Department.
- L. "Lead" An employee designated by the Chief of Police to perform duties above and beyond the duties listed in the job description for his/her classification, in the areas of direction, training, and coordination of other employees.
- M. "Member" -- An employee in the Police Department who has elected to become a member of the EGPOA.
- N. "Pay Differential" -- Additional salary paid to an employee who is assigned additional duties for which the employee receives additional compensation pursuant to this Agreement. Example: An employee who is assigned as a Motor Officer shall be paid a Pay Differential of 5%.
- O. "Police Chief" -- the Police Chief or the Police Chief's designated representative.
- P. "Position" -- duties and responsibilities assigned by the City to be performed by an employee.
- Q. "POST" -- Peace Officer's Standards and Training.
- R. "Supervisor" -- An employee in a classification that has the responsibility to hire, transfer, suspend, layoff, recall, promote, discipline, and direct the work of other employee, or to effectively recommend such action(s).

### **ARTICLE II -- CITY RIGHTS**

All City rights and functions, except those which are expressly abridged by this Agreement, shall remain vested with the City. The rights of the City include, but are not limited to, the exclusive right to:

- 1. Manage the City generally and to determine issues of policy.
- 2. Determine the necessity for an organization of any service or activity conducted by the City, and to expand or diminish services.
- 3. Determine the nature, manner, means, technology, and extent of services to be provided to the public.
- 4. Determine methods of financing.
- 5. Determine types of equipment or technology to be used.
- 6. Determine and/or change the facilities, methods, means, organizational structure, and size and composition of the work force, and to allocate and assign the work by which the City operations are to be conducted.

- 7. Determine and change the number of locations and types of operations, processes, and materials to be used in carrying out all City functions, including, but not limited to, the right to contract for or sub-contract any work or operation of the City.
- 8. Assign work to and schedule employees in accordance with requirements as determined by the City, and to establish and change work schedules and assignments.
- 9. Lay off employees from duties because of lack of work or funds, or under conditions where continued work would be ineffective or non-productive.
- 10. Establish and modify productivity and performance programs and standards.
- 11. Dismiss, suspend without pay, demote, reprimand, withhold salary step increases, or otherwise discipline employees for cause.
- 12. Determine minimum qualifications, skills, abilities, knowledge, selection procedures and standards, and job classifications, and to reclassify employees.
- 13. Hire, transfer, promote, and demote employees.
- 14. Determine policies, procedures, and standards for selection, training, and promotion of employees.
- 15. Establish reasonable employee performance standards including, but not limited to, quality and quantity standards; and to require compliance by employees with such performance standards.
- 16. Establish, publish, and/or modify rules and regulations to maintain order and safety and health in the City.
- 17. Take any and all necessary action to carry out the mission of the City in emergencies.

### ARTICLE III - NO STRIKE

EGPOA agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither it nor its officers, employees, representatives, or members will engage in, encourage, sanction, support or suggest any strikes, work stoppages, boycotts, slowdowns, mass resignations, mass absenteeism or any other similar actions which would involve suspension of, or interference with, the normal work of the City of Elk Grove. In the event that EGPOA members participate in such activities in violation of this provision, EGPOA shall immediately notify those members so engaged to cease and desist from such activities and shall instruct the members to return to their normal duties.

# **ARTICLE IV - EGPOA RIGHTS**

### 1. EGPOA Release Time Bank

The City shall provide an annual bank of 600 hours of release time to be used by designated representatives of the EGPOA to represent the Association on official Association business. The EGPOA Release Time Bank shall be administered as follows:

- A. Six hundred (600) hours shall be deposited each July 1. Any unused hours at the end of the fiscal year shall not roll over into the next fiscal year.
- B. Designated EGPOA representatives shall be the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Board of Director members, or any other employee in the EGPOA designated by the EGPOA President.
- C. No more than two (2) employees shall be released at the same time. The release of more than two (2) employees at the same time will require the prior approval of the Police Chief or designee.
- D. The EGPOA President or designee shall provide at least twenty-four (24) hours' notice to the supervisor of an employee to be released on EGPOA release time prior to utilization of such release time.
- E. EGPOA release time shall be used for official association business, including but not limited to, training programs, seminars, City Council meetings and meetings with elected officials (that do not conflict with FPPC rules and statutes).
- F. The Police Chief reserves the right to deny the release of any employee due to the operational needs of the Police Department.

# 2. Critical Incident Response

When an EGPOA representative responds during his/her scheduled hours of work to a major incident as outlined in Policy 358 for the purpose of representing an employee's rights, welfare or care, the EGPOA representative shall be compensated at his/her regular rate of pay. Subject to approval of the Police Chief, if the EGPOA representative response occurs outside his/her scheduled hours of work, the representative shall receive overtime compensation.

This section shall only apply to an EGPOA representative officially designated by the President of the EGPOA.

# 3. Payroll Deduction

- A. The City agrees to continue payroll deductions for members of the EGPOA for EGPOA membership dues. Such deductions shall be made pursuant to payroll deduction policies and procedures as established by the City.
- B. The EGPOA agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the City harmless against any claims made of any nature whatsoever, and against any suit instituted against the City arising from its deductions for dues or insurance or other programs sponsored by the EGPOA.

#### 4. Non-Discrimination

The City agrees not to discriminate against any employee because of membership in the EGPOA or because of any activities on behalf of the Association. The City further agrees not to discriminate, harass, or reprise against any employee as a result of their exercise of their rights under this Agreement, or under Section 3500 et seq., of the Government Code of the State of California.

### ARTICLE V -- SALARY AND OTHER COMPENSATION

# 1. Establishment of Salary Ranges

Each salary range shall consist of seven (7) steps designated as salary steps 1 through 7, in which the difference between each successive step shall be approximately five percent (5%). Salary steps shall be based on the classification's straight time hourly rate of pay, and denoted on an hourly, bi-weekly, monthly, and annual basis.

### A. 2023-24 Salaries and Supplemental Pay

Effective the later of the first full pay period following City Council adoption of the MOU or the first full pay period in July 2023:

# 1) General Salary Increase

Each employee in a classification which was less than five percent (5%) above the 80<sup>th</sup> percentile in the 2023 Total Compensation Survey will receive a General Salary Increase equal to the twelve-month increase in the consumer price index (CPI-U San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose) measured from February 2022 to February 2023. However, the increase shall be no less than two percent (2.0%) and no more than five percent (5%) (i.e., CPI 2-5%).

### 2) Market Salary Adjustment

Any salary range that was five percent (5%) or more below the 80th percentile in the 2023 Total Compensation Survey, shall receive a market salary adjustment of  $\frac{1}{2}$  the excess beyond five percent (5%). For example, if the Police Officer classification is 6.78% below the 80th percentile, the Police Officer salary range shall be increased by 0.89% (i.e.,  $\frac{(6.78-5)}{2} = 0.89\%$ ).

### 3) Supplemental Pay

Each employee in a classification which was five percent (5%) or more above the 80th percentile in the 2023 Total Compensation Survey will receive the equivalent of the July 2023 GSI in Paragraph (1), above, as follows: one percent (1%) as a GSI and the remainder as a supplemental payment. For example, if the GSI is 5%, the employee will receive a 1% GSI and the Supplemental Pay will be equivalent to 4%.

Supplemental Pay will be paid as described in Section V.1.A(4).

4) Supplemental Pay will be paid in the form of Additional Paid Leave. Additional Paid Leave may be used as normal discretionary leave – however, all other discretionary leave (i.e., vacation and compensatory time off) must be used before the use of Additional Paid Leave. Additional Paid Leave will be granted on the same paycheck as the Market Salary Adjustment. Any accrued but unused Additional Paid Leave will be cashed out on the pay period including August 31 of that same calendar year.

# B. 2024-25 Salaries and Supplemental Pay

Effective the first full pay period in July 2024:

### 1) General Salary Increase

Each employee in a classification which was less than five percent (5%) above the 80<sup>th</sup> percentile in the 2023 Total Compensation Survey will receive a General Salary Increase equal to the twelve-month increase in the consumer price index (CPI-U San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose) measured from February 2023 to February 2024. However, the increase shall be no less than two percent (2.0%) and no more than four percent (4%) (i.e., CPI 2-4%).

#### 2) Market Salary Adjustment

Any salary range that was five percent (5%) or more below the 80th percentile in the 2023 Total Compensation Survey, shall receive a market salary adjustment of  $\frac{1}{2}$  the excess beyond five percent (5%). For example, if the Police Officer classification is 6.78% below the 80th percentile, the Police Officer salary range shall be increased by 0.89% (i.e., (6.78-5)/2 = 0.89%).

### 3) Supplemental Pay

Each employee in a classification which was five percent (5%) or more above the 80th percentile in the 2023 Total Compensation Survey will receive the equivalent of the July 2024 GSI in Paragraph (1), above, as follows: one percent (1%) as a GSI and the remainder as a supplemental payment.

Supplemental Pay will be paid as described in Section V.1.A(4).

### C. 2025-26 Salaries and Supplemental Pay

The City will conduct a Market Study pursuant to Section V.13 to be completed in March of 2025.

Effective the first full pay period in July 2025:

#### 1) General Salary Increase

Each employee in a classification which was less than five percent (5%) above the 80<sup>th</sup> percentile in the 2025 Total Compensation Survey will receive a General Salary Increase equal to the twelve-month increase in the consumer price index (CPI-U San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose) measured from February 2024 to February 2025. However, the increase shall be no less than two percent (2.0%) and no more than four percent (4%) (i.e., CPI 2-4%).

### 2) Market Salary Adjustment

Any salary range that was five percent (5%) or more below the 80th percentile in the 2025 Total Compensation Survey, shall receive a market salary adjustment of  $\frac{1}{2}$  the excess beyond five percent (5%). For example, if the Police Officer classification is 6.78% below the 80th percentile, the Police Officer salary range shall be increased by 0.89% (i.e., (6.78-5)/2 = 0.89%).

### 3) Supplemental Pay

Each employee in a classification which was five percent (5%) or more above the 80th percentile in the 2025 Total Compensation Survey will receive the equivalent of the July 2025 GSI in Paragraph (1), above, as follows: one percent (1%) as a GSI and the remainder as a supplemental payment.

Supplemental Pay will be paid as described in Section V.1.A(4).

### D. 2026-27 Salaries and Supplemental Pay

Effective the first full pay period in July 2026:

### 1) General Salary Increase

Each employee in a classification which was less than five percent (5%) above the 80<sup>th</sup> percentile in the 2025 Total Compensation Survey will receive a General Salary Increase equal to the twelve-month increase in the consumer price index (CPI-U San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose) measured from February 2025 to February 2026. However, the increase shall be no less than two percent (2.0%) and no more than four percent (4%) (i.e., CPI 2-4%).

### 2) Market Salary Adjustment

Any salary range that was five percent (5%) or more below the 80th percentile in the 2025 Total Compensation Survey, shall receive a market salary adjustment of  $\frac{1}{2}$  the excess beyond five percent (5%). For example, if the Police Officer classification is 6.78% below the 80th percentile, the Police Officer salary range shall be increased by 0.89% (i.e., (6.78-5)/2 = 0.89%).

### 3) Supplemental Pay

Each employee in a classification which was five percent (5%) or more above the 80th percentile in the 2025 Total Compensation Survey will receive supplemental payments equivalent to the 2026 GSI in Paragraph (1), above.

Each employee in a classification which was five percent (5%) or more above the 80th percentile in the 2025 Total Compensation Survey will receive the equivalent of the July 2026 GSI in Paragraph (1), above, as follows: one percent (1%) as a GSI and the remainder as a supplemental payment.

Supplemental Pay will be paid as described in Section V.1.A(4).

# 2. Placement of Employees into Salary Ranges

Employees shall be placed on a step in the salary range for their job classification pursuant to the following:

Salary placement for new hires and employees who are promoted, demoted, transferred, reinstated, or working out of class shall be determined in a manner consistent with current City practice as stated in the Personnel Rules and Regulations.

# 3. Advancement through Salary Range

Advancement through the salary ranges shall be as follows:

- A. New employees shall be appointed at the first step of the salary range to which their class is assigned, except as follows:
  - As determined by the City Manager, when it appears the education and previous training or experience of a candidate are substantially superior to those required of the class; or
  - (2) If recruiting for a class is particularly difficult, the Police Chief may recommend, and the City Manager may authorize, an appointment to a position at a salary higher than the first step.
- B. Salary step increases are not automatic upon completion of the required length of service. Rather, employees who reach the eligible length of service and demonstrate an average score of 3.0 or greater on the standard performance evaluation pursuant to Article XV, Section 5 shall advance to the next higher step in the salary range. Employees may be considered eligible for an increase in salary according to the following:
  - (1) Where salary Step 1 is paid upon initial employment, the employee shall be required to complete one (1) year of service, or an equivalent number of regular hours, from the date of employment prior to becoming eligible for advancement to Step 2.
  - (2) Additional salary steps may be paid after each successive one (1) year period or an equivalent number of hours in the preceding step, where the employee has demonstrated an average score of 3.0 or greater on the standard performance evaluation.
  - (3) Eligibility for salary step increases shall be on the basis of the employee's employment anniversary date, and when awarded, shall be paid pursuant to the City's Personnel Rules & Regulations. The employment anniversary date shall be the date of permanent assignment to the current classification. No salary step advancements shall be granted unless recommended by the Police Chief and approved by the City Manager.
  - (4) When an employee has an eighteen (18) month probationary period, eligibility for the first salary step increase shall be upon successful completion of the entire probationary period. Eligibility for the second step increase shall be on the basis of the employee's second employment anniversary date. Thereafter, eligibility for any other salary step increases shall be as set forth in paragraph 3 above.

- (5) <u>Effective Date.</u> When an employee's merit advancement date falls in the first week of a pay period, the employee's merit salary advancement shall take place on the first day of that pay period. When an employee's merit advancement date falls in the second week of the pay period, the employee's merit salary advancement will take place on the first day of the next pay period.
- C. Where an employee is hired or re-employed above Step 1, the employee shall not be advanced to the next higher step prior to completion of one (1) year of service from the date of employment or re-employment in the class, or an equivalent number of regular hours.
- D. In extraordinary circumstances where rigid adherence to the foregoing salary adjustment practices would be contrary to the best interests of the City, the City Manager in the exercise of his/her sole discretion may authorize advancement to higher salary steps appropriate to the circumstance(s).

# 4. Education Incentive Pay

- A. When an employee qualifies for one or more elements of Education Incentive Pay, such additional compensation shall be based on the amount of the pay differential multiplied by the employee's salary step. Education Incentive Pay shall not compound. Education Incentive Pay shall be effective the beginning of a pay period after the necessary paperwork has been turned in to the City Human Resources Department by the Elk Grove Police Department Professional Standards. The City and Association agree that the required paperwork for POST certificates only, shall be either a copy of the completed and submitted application for POST certificate and an executed Education Incentive Pay POST Certificates request form (see Attachment A), or a copy of the actual POST certificate. If the certificate is later denied by POST, the employee shall reimburse the City for all monies earned as education incentive pay associated with the denied POST certificate. The City will provide the employee with a statement containing the total education incentive pay subject to reimbursement. The Police Officer shall then reimburse the City for the full amount of the education incentive pay in the manner outlined in Attachment A.
- B. Police Officers and Police Sergeants shall be entitled to receive Educational Incentive Pay based on the following:
  - (1) Five percent (5%) for an Associate of Arts degree, Associate of Science degree or completion of 60 college units. Employees hired after July 1, 2009 shall not qualify for this pay differential.
  - (2) Five percent (5%) for a Bachelor of Arts degree or Bachelor of Science degree.
  - (3) Five percent (5%) for a Master of Arts degree or Master of Science degree. Employees hired after July 1, 2009 shall not qualify for this pay differential.
  - (4) Five percent (5%) for an Intermediate POST certificate.
  - (5) Five percent (5%) for an Advanced POST certificate.

- (6) Effective the first full pay period of July 2022, six percent (6%) for an Advanced POST certificate.
- C. Non-sworn employees shall be entitled to receive Educational Incentive Pay or Paid Time Off ("PTO") based on the following:
  - (1) Non-Sworn employees shall be entitled to receive Education Incentive Pay Differential of five percent (5%) for a Bachelor of Arts degree or Bachelor of Science degree.
  - (2) Dispatchers and Dispatch Supervisors who possess an Advanced POST certificate shall receive a two and a half percent (2.5%) pay differential.
  - (3) Effective the first full pay period in July 2022, Dispatchers and Dispatch Supervisors who possess an Advanced POST certificate shall receive a three and a half percent (3.5%) pay differential.
  - (4) Dispatchers and Dispatch Supervisors who possess an Intermediate POST certificate shall receive a two and a half percent (2.5%) pay differential.
  - (5) On the first full pay period in July of each year, Forensic Investigators and the Forensic Investigative Supervisor who possess a Latent Print Examiners certificate shall receive twenty (20) hours of PTO. The maximum accrual for these PTO hours is twenty (20).
  - (6) All PTO hours earned under paragraph 4 above, shall be used prior to other leave balances and shall not be eligible for cash out except upon termination of employment.

# **5. Assignment Pay**

- A. When an officer or Sergeant is assigned by the Police Chief as a School Resource Officer/Liaison to the Elk Grove Unified School District employees and students, Public Information Officer, or Motor Officer (Traffic), the employee shall receive a 5% Assignment Pay differential for all hours worked in the assignment.
- B. When an officer or Sergeant is assigned by the Police Chief as a Detective, the employee shall receive a 5% Assignment Pay differential for all hours worked in the assignment. The Detective pay differential shall also apply to up to one (1) Sergeant or Officer assigned as the Special Equipment Operator and one (1) Sergeant assigned to Internal Affairs.
- C. When an Officer is assigned a trainee by the Police Chief as a Field Training Officer (FTO), the employee shall receive a 7.5% Assignment Pay differential for all hours worked in the assignment (i.e., hours worked with the assigned trainee).
  - In addition, the Police Chief may assign (at their sole discretion) one or more full time FTO's to the program. Full time FTO's will be routinely and consistently assigned to train employees.
- D. Assignment Pay shall be multiplied by the employee's salary step. Assignment Pay shall not be compounded. Assignment Pay shall be effective the beginning of the pay period after the Police Chief makes the assignment.

- E. This section shall not apply to "temporary" assignments. For purposes of this section, "temporary" shall mean assignments that are fifteen (15) consecutive days or less in duration.
- F. Reassignments may be made pursuant to the Elk Grove Police Department Policy 1004 Promotional and Transfer Policy.

# 6. Training Officer Pay - Non-Sworn Employees

When a, Dispatcher or other non-sworn employee is assigned a trainee by the Police Chief, the employee shall receive a 7.5% Training Officer Pay differential for all hours worked in the assignment (i.e., hours worked with the assigned trainee). Training Officer Pay shall not compound. Training Officer Pay shall be multiplied by the employee's salary step.

In addition, there may be up to two (2) full time Communications Training Officers assigned to the program at the Police Chief's sole discretion. Full Time Communications Training Officers' will be routinely and consistently assigned to train employees.

# 7. Support Services Lead Pay

When a non-sworn employee is assigned as a Support Services Lead by the Police Chief, the employee shall receive a 5% Support Services Lead Pay differential for all hours worked in the assignment. Support Services Lead Pay shall not compound. Support Services Lead Pay shall be effective the beginning of the pay period after the Police Chief makes the assignment. Support Services Lead Pay shall be multiplied by the employee's salary step.

# 8. Canine Assignment Pay

Police Officers assigned to the K-9 unit will be paid ½ hour overtime for every day an officer is assigned to the K-9 unit and assigned a canine. Canine Assignment Pay shall not compound. The Police Department will maintain a policy governing the care and boarding of canines.

### 9. Court Time

- A. An employee subpoenaed or ordered by the Court to appear outside the employee's scheduled hours of work for any legal proceeding as a result of the employee's employment with the City of Elk Grove shall be paid a minimum of four (4) hours of overtime. This minimum four (4) hours overtime is for each morning or afternoon court appearance. Multiple subpoenas for the same morning or afternoon period will count as one appearance. If the court orders an employee to return through the lunch period or outside normal hours of work, these hours will be compensated as overtime if they fall outside the employee's work hours.
- B. If such Court appearance is cancelled and notification is given after 5:00 PM the workday immediately preceding the appearance, the employee shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours of overtime. For Court appearance cancellations with notice before 5:00 PM the workday immediately preceding the appearance, the employee shall receive no additional compensation.

C. If the Court appearance falls during the employee's scheduled hours of work, the employee shall receive overtime compensation for only those hours outside the employee's scheduled hours of work.

# 10. Call Out Pay

Employees shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours overtime, or actual hours worked if more than two (2) hours, when called in to work or to attend a meeting on a scheduled day off.

# 11. On Call and Call Back Pay

- A. Two (2) employees in the class of Police Sergeant (one in the Investigations Bureau and one in the Traffic Unit), one (1) employee in the class of Forensic Investigator, one (1) Officer/Detective from the Traffic Unit (limited to employees who possess a certificate of completion of a P.O.S.T. certified Advanced Collision Investigation Course), and three (3) Detectives shall be entitled to fourteen (14) hours straight time per week as On Call Pay. Employees may record on-call pay on their electronic time sheet in increments of two (2) hours of straight time per day of on-call or two (2) hours of straight CTO (Compensated Time Off) per day. If an on-call employee is called into duty the employee shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half for actual hours worked, with a minimum payment of two (2) hours, regardless of how many hours they have actually worked in the previous work period.
- B. The Police Chief or designee, in their sole discretion, may designate employees to be on Emergency Activation On-Call (standby). Such designated employees shall be paid at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) of the employee's straight time rate of pay for all hours spent on Emergency Activation On-Call. If an Emergency Activation On-Call employee is called into duty, such on-call pay shall end and the employee shall receive compensation for actual hours worked. The employee shall be paid a minimum payment of two (2) hours of work.
- C. On Call status requires an employee so assigned:
  - (1) To be ready to respond immediately to calls from the City and to be called into work;
  - (2) To be reachable by telephone/pager/email;
  - (3) To remain within a reasonable distance of the work location (so that the employee is able report to work within one (1) hour of receiving the call to report to work); and
  - (4) To refrain from activities that might impair their ability to perform any assigned duties.

# 12. Deferred Compensation

The City shall provide an IRS Deferred Compensation Plan which may include but is not limited to an IRS 457, 401(a), Roth 457 and a Roth IRA.

(1) For employees hired prior to 01/01/2013 and considered "classic members" by CalPERS, the City shall make a matching contribution into the 401(a) plan of up to two (2) percent of the employee's base salary, subject to maximums set by law.

- (2) For employees hired after 01/01/2013 and considered "classic members" by CalPERS, the City shall make a matching contribution into the 401(a) plan of up to two (2) percent of the employee's base salary, subject to maximums set by law.
- (3) For employees hired after 01/01/2013 and considered "new members" by CalPERS, the City shall make a matching contribution into the 401(a) plan of up to four (4) percent of the employee's base salary, subject to maximums set by law.

# 13. Market Study

A. The City will conduct a total compensation market study for the following classes:

Police Officer

Police Sergeant

**Animal Services Officer** 

Dispatcher

Dispatch Supervisor

Forensic Investigator

Senior Animal Service Officer

Supervising Forensic Investigator

- B. The study shall be completed no later than April 30<sup>th</sup> of the year in which labor negotiations are conducted. The purpose of this study is to determine the competitiveness of total compensation paid to the classes listed above in the market.
- C. Upon completion of this market study the City and EGPOA agree to meet to review study findings. Study findings shall be used by the parties in negotiations over a successor Agreement.
- D. The following agencies will be surveyed and shall constitute the market:

County of Sacramento

City of Antioch

City of Citrus Heights

City of Davis

City of Fairfield

City of Folsom

City of Lodi

City of Rocklin

City of Roseville

City of Sacramento

City of Tracy

City of Vacaville

Total compensation for each agency listed above for all classifications (where applicable) shall be the monthly sum of:

Top step in the salary range, maximum deferred compensation, Education Incentive (excluding graduate degrees), POST Certification Pay, employer paid employee share of retirement Agreement between City of Elk Grove and

Police Officers Association (7/1/23 - 6/30/27)

contribution, employer portion of retirement paid by the employee, social security, uniform allowance, employer contribution towards health insurance, dental insurance, vision insurance, life insurance, and long-term disability insurance.

### ARTICLE VI - RETIREMENT

The City shall continue the contractual agreement (City Ordinance No. 31-2005) between the City of Elk Grove and the Board of Administration of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS).

All local safety employees eligible for membership in this association hired on or prior to June 30, 2012 shall receive the retirement benefit of 3% @ 50 (Tier 1). All local safety employees eligible for membership in this association hired on or after August 12, 2012 shall receive the retirement benefit of 3% at 55 (Tier 2). Effective the first full pay period in July 2012, all local safety employees in Tier 1 and Tier 2 shall pay nine percent (9%) of the employee's contribution towards PERS.

Local Safety Employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 and defined by CalPERS as "new members" shall receive the retirement benefit of 2.7% @ 57 (Tier 3) with a final compensation period of three (3) years. Effective the first full pay period in July 2014, all local safety employees in Tier 3 shall pay eleven and one-half percent (11.5%) of the cost rate. Thereafter, all local safety members in Tier 3 shall pay fifty percent (50%) of the total normal cost rate as calculated by CalPERS in its annual actuarial valuation.

Effective the first full pay period after a contract amendment with CalPERS (which occurred November 16, 2014), the employee shall begin paying three percent (3%) of the City's contribution as designated by CalPERS. This payment shall be done on a pre-tax basis consistent with IRS Code 414(h)(2).

All miscellaneous (non-safety) employees eligible for membership in this association hired on or prior to June 30, 2012 shall receive the retirement benefit of 2.7% @ 55 (Tier 1). All miscellaneous (non-safety) employees eligible for membership in this association hired on or after August 12, 2012 shall receive the retirement benefit of 2% at 55 (Tier 2). Effective the first full pay period in July 2012, all miscellaneous (non-safety) employees in Tier 1 shall pay eight percent (8%) of the employee's contribution towards CalPERS. All miscellaneous (non-safety) employees in Tier 2 shall pay seven percent (7%) of the employee's contribution towards CalPERS.

Miscellaneous (non-safety) employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 and defined by CalPERS as "new members" shall receive the retirement benefits of 2.0% @ 62 (Tier 3) with a final compensation period of three (3) years. Miscellaneous members in Tier 3 shall pay fifty percent (50.0%) of the total normal cost rate as calculated by CalPERS in its annual actuarial valuation. The current member contribution is 6.25%

### ARTICLE VII -- HEALTH AND WELFARE

The City's obligation for health, dental, vision, life and disability insurance coverage is limited to plan contribution. Plan content, including eligibility criteria, is determined by the respective carriers.

# 1. Health, Dental and Vision Insurance Coverage

A. Health Insurance:

The City shall contract with the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) for health benefits. All plans offered by PERS shall be available to employees in the bargaining unit.

B. Dental Insurance:

Dental insurance coverage shall be provided by the City at benefit levels in effect as of the current calendar year.

C. Vision Care Insurance:

Vision coverage shall be provided by the City at benefit levels in effect as of the current calendar year.

- D. City contribution to Health, Dental, and Vision Insurance Coverage:
  - (1) The City shall pay 100% of the Dental and Vision premiums for Employee only, Two-Party, Employee plus child, and Family, except as provided in D(4).
  - (2) The City shall pay the following monthly contribution towards the cost of 2023 employee health insurance:
    - Employee only: A maximum of \$822.37
    - Two-Party: A maximum of \$1,644.73
    - Family: A maximum of \$2,138.15
    - a. Annually thereafter, the City will adjust its monthly contribution towards the cost of employee health insurance in an amount equal to one-half (1/2) the increase of the monthly Kaiser Permanente contribution rates for the upcoming year for Employee only, Two-Party and Family. In the event the monthly employee contribution for health insurance would exceed 10% of the total monthly Kaiser premium cost, the City shall set its maximum contribution rate for that plan year equal to 90% of a Kaiser Employee only, Two-Party, and Family plan.
    - b. In the case of a decrease in the cost of employee health insurance, the City and employee shall share equally one-half (1/2) of the decrease of the monthly Kaiser Permanente contribution rates for Employee only, Two-Party, and Family.
    - c. Employees who select a CalPERS health plan with a monthly premium that results in a cost that is higher than the maximum paid by the City shall pay the difference through payroll deduction.

- d. Employees who select a CalPERS health plan with a monthly premium that results in a cost that is lower than the maximum paid by the City shall not receive the difference in pay.
- (3) Employees hired prior to October 1, 2009 who show evidence of other group health insurance coverage and do not select a City health plan shall receive a monthly in lieu cash fringe allowance of \$650 per month. Employees hired on or after October 1, 2009 shall receive a cash fringe of \$300 per month. Employees who choose to receive the cash in lieu and select Dental and/or Vision coverage, shall pay the full cost of Dental and Vision premiums.

### 2. Life Insurance

The City shall provide employee group life insurance coverage. Coverage shall provide 100% of annual salary with a minimum of \$50,000 and a maximum of \$300,000.

# 3. Short Term Disability Program

State Disability Insurance (SDI) shall be the primary short-term disability insurance program for the EGPOA, this self-insured benefit will be paid by the employee and will replace up to 55% of salary after a seven (7) day waiting period. The City shall provide Lincoln National as secondary short-term disability insurance. This plan will replace up to 60% of salary in the absence of SDI or 5% in conjunction with SDI, with a fourteen (14) day waiting period.

# 4. Long Term Disability Program

The City shall contract with Lincoln National for long term disability benefits. The City shall provide this benefit at no cost to the employee.

# 5. Flexible Spending Account

The City shall provide a flexible spending account which provides employees with the options of dependent care expenses and unreimbursed medical expenses as permitted by Internal Revenue Service regulations. The City shall provide the flexible limits during each open enrollment period. Employee premiums for flexible spending account benefits shall be deducted on a pre-tax basis from employee pay.

# 6. Health Retirement Account

### A. Option II

(1) Effective the first full pay period in July 2016, each participant in Option II will contribute based on their age on the first day of the fiscal year as follows:

Employee Age	Employee Contribution	Employer Contribution
34 and under	\$60.00	\$70.00
35-39	\$70.00	\$80.00
40-44	\$80.00	\$90.00
45 and over	\$90.00	\$100.00

At separation of service, an employee shall receive 75% of accrued leave payout (combination of Annual Leave, Compensatory Time Off and Holiday In-Lieu) in either direct and/or deferred compensation. The value for the remaining 25% of accrued leave will be deposited directly into the HRA account.

# 7. Employee Assistance Program

The City shall make an employee assistance program (EAP) available to each eligible employee. The EAP shall provide personal counseling for employees and/or their dependents. The counseling is intended to assist employees and eligible dependents who are experiencing personal problems such as family/marital problems, personal/emotional problems, substance abuse problems, and work-related problems.

# 8. Health Benefits Advisory Committee

The parties agree to participate in a Health Benefits Advisory Committee to review existing health and welfare benefit programs, plan changes, and cost containment, including but not limited to, second tier health and related benefit contributions for new employees. EGPOA may select up to two City employee representatives to participate in Committee meetings. In addition to City representatives, the Committee may also include non EGPOA represented employees.

Employees who participate in Committee meetings shall do so without loss of compensation and shall not be entitled to overtime.

### ARTICLE VIII -- HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

#### 1. Work Shifts and Work Schedules

- A. The Police Chief shall establish work shifts and work schedules for all employees. Employees shall work shifts of eight, nine, ten, eleven or twelve hours based on the Police Department's needs.
- B. The Police Department may redefine the first and last day of any scheduled workweek for each shift. The redefined workweek will be implemented for each work schedule based on the Police Department's scheduling requirements.
- C. Prior to any permanent change in shift schedules, the City will give notice to the EGPOA and, if requested by the EGPOA, meet over the impact of such change.
- D. Schedule Change Employees that have completed the Field Training Program and are non-probationary employees shall be given at least seven (7) calendar days' notice before changing an employees' regular shift unless exigent circumstances exist requiring less notice. Involuntary shift changes shall be done in reverse seniority order. This section does not preclude an employee from voluntarily agreeing to a change in schedule.

### 2. Rest Periods

A. All full-time employees shall receive two paid fifteen (15) minute rest periods for each shift.

B. Rest periods shall be considered hours worked and employees may be required to perform duties.

#### 3. Meal Period

- A. Except as set forth in subsection B below, all full-time employees shall receive one (1) unpaid meal period per shift. Meal periods shall be either thirty (30) minutes or sixty (60) minutes in duration depending on the needs of the Police Department, as determined by the Police Chief.
- B. Full-time sworn employees, Dispatchers and other employees designated by the Police Chief who are assigned to shift work shall receive one thirty (30) minute paid meal period. Paid meal periods shall be considered hours worked and employees shall be subject to immediate return to duty.

### 4. Overtime

- A. Overtime may be required of any employee when the Police Chief determines it to be in the best interest of the City. Employees will be compensated only for overtime ordered or authorized by designated supervisory personnel.
- B. Overtime or compensating time off (CTO) will be paid for all hours worked outside an employee's scheduled hours of work.
  - 1. Hours worked outside an employee's scheduled hours of work, but which are an extension of the employee's regular assignment, for example, an employee is held over from their regular shift to complete an assignment, will be compensated as overtime or CTO, at the employee's option.
  - 2. Extra-duty Employment, as defined by Elk Grove Police Department Policy 1040.1.1 will be compensated as overtime.
  - 3. Hours worked outside an employee's scheduled hours of work for grant-funded and/or other funding-restricted assignments, for example, SAVTRU, Office of Traffic Safety grants, Alcohol Beverage Control grants, California Department of Justice grants, and School Resource Officers, will be compensated as overtime.
  - 4. Special events, whether or not sponsored by the City, will be compensated as overtime or CTO, at City's discretion. The announcement notifying employees of special event overtime opportunities will specify whether the hours worked are eligible for overtime and/or CTO.
- C. The overtime rate of pay shall be either one and one-half (1½) times the hourly regular rate of pay with respect to cash payment; or one and one-half (1½) hours for each hour worked with respect to CTO.
- D. Except as provided in subsection f below, CTO may be accrued in lieu of overtime pay at the rate of one and one-half (1½) hours of CTO for every one-hour (1) of overtime worked, up to a maximum of one hundred and twenty (120) hours. Employees may take CTO off at the convenience of the City and upon approval of the Police Chief. Employees may not accrue CTO in excess of the one hundred and twenty (120) hour maximum.

E. From July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2011 employees were allowed to accrue a maximum of two hundred forty (240) hours of CTO. Effective July 1, 2011, the maximum accrual of CTO was returned to one hundred twenty (120) hours. Any hours earned between July 1, 2009 and June 30, 2011 in excess of one hundred twenty (120) hours (hereinafter referred to as "CTX" hours), and still on accrual effective July 1, 2012, shall be placed in a leave bank to be used as leave only. CTX hours may not be cashed out, except upon separation from employment from the City.

### 5. Shift Trades

- A. Employees may trade one or more work shift(s) with each other, subject to the following conditions:
  - (1) Shift trades shall be made only with the prior approval of the Police Chief.
  - (2) Employees trading shifts shall be qualified to work for each other.
- B. In the event an employee creates an approved shift trade agreement with another employee and that employee is unable to report to work the shift, the original employee shall either:
  - (1) Work the shift and receive no additional compensation; or
  - (2) Subject to Article VIII, Section 5, Subsection A above, secure another employee to work the shift; or
  - (3) Notify the department that the shift will be vacant due to shift trade, and the department will deduct the appropriate number of Annual Leave hours from the original employee's Annual Leave bank and fill the vacant shift with an employee selected by the department. If the department must fill the vacant shift with an employee on overtime status, Annual Leave at the rate of time and one-half will be deducted from the original employee's Annual Leave bank.
- C. The Police Chief reserves the right to cancel any or all shift trades if he/she deems it in the best interest of the department.

# 6. Annual Patrol Shift Bidding

Annual patrol shift bids will be conducted on or prior to November 15<sup>th</sup> of each year, with the new shifts to begin the first Sunday of the first full pay period in the following January. The shifts will be chosen for one (1) calendar year.

- A. Shift bidding shall be by classification for sergeants, police officers, and community service officers. Field Training Officers (FTOs) shall bid according to their seniority as police officers. The order of shift bidding shall be as follows: Sergeants, FTOs, K-9, Police Officers, and Community Service Officers.
- B. Employees in each classification may select their shift and days off during the annual shift bid.

- C. Probationary officers may be assigned to any shift at the discretion of management based on organizational need. In order to ensure effective placement of probationary officers, shift slots may be designated for those officers in advance of the general bid.
- D. Vacant shifts that are anticipated to be vacant for more than three (3) months will be posted for those interested unless circumstances and organizational need dictate otherwise. If a shift vacancy is posted, it will be filled based on seniority, without the need to post up any vacancies created behind the first shift move.
- E. The Chief of Police or his designee shall design the shift plan each year and shall meet and confer with the EGPOA if any changes involving work hours, shift lengths, or days off are being implemented in the coming year's work schedule.
- F. Employees assigned to Patrol, who are anticipated to be off on extended leave or working in a modified duty capacity for a period of three months or more from the date of the annual patrol shift change, shall not be allowed to bid to a specific shift based on seniority. When the employee returns to Patrol in full duty capacity, s/he will be allowed to request a specific shift from those that are open at that time. Every effort will be made to grant that shift request; however, it is possible the employee will be assigned to a different shift based on organizational need at the time.

### ARTICLE IX – HOLIDAYS

# 1. Non-Shift Employees

A. Employees who are not assigned by the Police Chief to work shifts shall receive the following holidays:

New Year's Day

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

President's Day (Washington's Birthday)

Memorial Day

4th of July (Independence Day)

Labor Day

Veterans Day

Thanksgiving Day

Day after Thanksgiving (Family Day)

Christmas Eve (4 hours)

Christmas Day

New Year's Eve (4 hours)

Two (2) floating holidays as set forth in Item E below.

B. If any holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed as the holiday; and if any such holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed as the holiday. Exception: If Christmas Eve or New Year's Eve fall on a Sunday, the preceding Friday shall be observed as the holiday.

- C. If a holiday falls on an employee's regularly scheduled time off, the employee shall receive an equivalent amount of time off to be scheduled with and approved by his/her supervisor within the same pay period as the holiday, when possible, but not later than the end of the calendar year. Exceptions may be granted by the City Manager.
- D. Full time employees shall receive eight (8) hours' pay for holidays. Employees who work less than forty (40) hours per week shall generally receive pay for holidays commensurate with the percentage of hours worked based upon a forty (40) hour work week. Part-time employees who work less than twenty (20) hours per week shall not be paid for holidays. An employee must either work both the regularly scheduled work day immediately prior to a holiday and the regularly scheduled work day immediately after that holiday or be on an approved paid leave to receive holiday pay.
- E. As listed under Item 1 above, employees shall be entitled to two (2) floating holidays (8 hours) each July 1. To be eligible to earn the floating holidays, an employee must be classified as a regular full-time employee. Employees who work between twenty (20) and forty (40) hours a week shall be entitled to prorated floating holidays. New employees hired after July 1 shall not accrue any personal holidays until the following July 1. Employees must use all the floating holiday hours in the fiscal year they are received. If an employee has unused floating holiday hours from the previous fiscal year, the employee will not receive the floating holiday hours for the new fiscal year.

# 2. Shift Employees

Employees who are assigned by the Police Chief to work shifts shall receive a 5% Holiday Pay differential. Holiday Pay shall be multiplied by the employee's salary step. Employees with accrued Holiday Leave credits on the books may take such time off and cash out such time in the same manner as Annual Leave. Holiday Pay shall be compensable for retirement (PERS) purposes. Shift employees shall be entitled to one (1) floating holiday (8 hours) each July 1 subject to the same provisions for non-shift employees as outlined in Article IX, Section 1(E).

# **ARTICLE X -- LEAVES**

### 1. Annual Leave

A. Accrual of Annual Leave

Full time employees shall accrue Annual Leave hours according to the following schedule:

Years of Employment*	Annual Accrual	Days per year	Maximum Accrual
Upon hire	176 hours	22	352 hours
At 5 <sup>th</sup> year anniversary	216 hours	27	432 hours
At 10 <sup>th</sup> year anniversary	232 hours	29	464 hours

At 15 <sup>th</sup> year anniversary	256 hours	32	512 hours
At 20 <sup>th</sup> year anniversary	272 hours	34	544 hours

\* Effective as soon as administratively possible following the adoption of this MOU by the City Council, but no later than December 31, 2023, employees will accrue annual leave based on the earlier of (a) their hire date, or (b) the date they received their P.O.S.T. Basic Certificate. Employees are responsible for informing the Department of Human Resources of their initial P.O.S.T. Basic certification date if it differs from their most recent hire date with the City, and the updated accrual rate will be effective within two (2) pay periods. However, employees hired on or before July 1, 2023, who have an accrual dated based on a date earlier than this paragraph (i.e., hire date with a previous law enforcement agency) shall not have a change in their accruals.

Part time employees who work twenty (20) hours or more shall be entitled to Annual Leave benefits commensurate with the percentage of hours worked based upon a forty (40) hour workweek. Part time employees who work less than twenty (20) hours per week are not entitled to Annual leave. Accrual begins on an employee's hire date.

Once an employee reaches maximum accrual, the employee will stop accruing Annual Leave unless written approval is provided by the City Manager for extenuating circumstances.

#### B. Use of Annual Leave

Annual Leave hours may be used for any absence approved by the City, including:

- (1) Vacation;
- (2) An absence caused by illness or injury to the employee;
- (3) Doctor, dental and vision appointments for the employee; and
- (4) If the employee's presence is required due to the illness or medical appointment of an immediate family member. Members or immediate family include spouse, registered domestic partner, children, stepchildren, children of registered domestic partner, parents, brothers, sisters, parent-in-law, grandparents, and grandchildren.

The times during which an employee may use Annual Leave for vacation shall be determined by the Police Chief. Employees with less than three (3) months of employment with the City shall not use Annual Leave for vacation purposes unless the use of such leave was agreed to and documented prior to employment with the City.

### C. Use of Annual Leave for Illness or Injury

In order to receive compensation while using Annual Leave for an unscheduled illness or injury, the employee shall notify the Police Chief or his/her designee no less than two (2) hours prior to the start of a scheduled shift. When an unscheduled absence is for one (1) workday or more, the employee may be required to submit a physician's certificate with the Police Chief or the Human Resources Department, verifying the need to be absent due to illness or injury. The City retains the right to question and to limit the use of Annual

Leave if the unscheduled leave is having a negative impact on City operations and performance.

#### D. Cash Out of Annual Leave/CTO

Once annually, during the month of November, employees may, upon written approval, receive compensation for up to eighty (80) hours total of their unused Annual Leave and/or CTO bank based upon the regular rate of pay. The ability to cash out Annual Leave is based upon the following criteria:

- 1) The employee used at least forty (40) hours of Annual Leave during the previous year; and
- (2) The employee shall have a minimum of eighty (80) Annual Leave hours balance after the cash out.

#### 2. Bereavement Leave

- A. A full-time employee shall be eligible for up to forty (40) hours of paid Bereavement Leave in the event of the death of a member of the employee's immediate family. For purposes of Bereavement Leave, immediate family member is as defined in the Personnel Rules and Regulations.
- B. Employees may be entitled to take additional days off using the employee's eligible leave banks pursuant to the Personnel Rules and Regulations.
- C. The employee shall give notice to his/her immediate supervisor prior to taking such leave.

### ARTICLE XI -- GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

### 1. Definition

The term "Grievance" as used in this Agreement is limited to a complaint or request of an employee, group of employees, or EGPOA which involves the interpretation, application, or compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.

### 2. Time Limits

Grievances not presented within the time limits established for each step of this procedure shall not be considered. Should the City fail to answer within the established time limits, the grievance may be processed to the next level.

When days are used in this section for the purpose of establishing time limits, those limits will be presumed to have been met when the appropriate forms are either personally delivered to the affected party or deposited in the U.S. mail, as evidenced by the appropriate postmark.

Time limits may be waived by mutual agreement between the parties. As referred to in this article, all "days" are "calendar days."

### 3. Presentation

An employee and/or EGPOA representative may present a grievance while on duty, provided such presentations and discussions do not disrupt City operations and are kept to a reasonable minimum.

### 4. Procedure

All grievances as defined herein shall be processed in accordance with this procedure. All grievances, beginning at Step 2 shall be filed on forms provided by the City for that purpose. The City may refuse to consider a grievance in those circumstances where the aggrieved party has not followed this procedure. However, steps of the grievance procedure may be waived by mutual agreement between the parties.

- A. STEP 1. Within fifteen (15) days of the act(s) and/or omission(s) giving rise to the grievance or within fifteen (15) days of the time the employee or EGPOA should reasonably have been aware of said act(s) and/or omission(s), the grievance shall be discussed informally with the person or persons most directly responsible for the circumstances which gave rise to the grievance. The designated person to hear a Step 1 grievance is the employee's service area commander or his/her designee. If the grievance is not resolved within fifteen (15) days of the date on which it is first presented at Step 1, the grievant may proceed to Step 2.
- B. STEP 2. Within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the Step 1 answer, or if no answer is given, within thirty (30) days of the Step 1 meeting, the grievant, if still dissatisfied, shall file with the Police Chief, a formal written grievance. The designated person to hear a Step 2 grievance is the Police Chief or his/her designee. Within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of the formal grievance the Police Chief or designee shall meet with the grievant to discuss the matter. The Police Chief or designee shall respond to the grievant, in writing, within fifteen (15) days of the Step 2 meeting. The Step 2 response shall include the position of the Police Department and the reasons therefore, as related to the grievance.
- C. STEP 3. Within fifteen (15) days of the Step 2 response or, if no Step 2 response is received, within thirty (30) days of the Step 2 meeting, the grievance may be presented in writing to the City Manager. The designated person to hear a Step 3 grievance is the City Manager or his/her designee. The City Manager or designee shall conduct such investigation as is deemed appropriate and shall issue a written determination within thirty (30) days of the date on which the grievance is first presented at Step 3. If the City Manager or designee fails to issue a written determination within the prescribed period of time or if the determination is not satisfactory to the grievant, the EGPOA may request that the matter be submitted to binding arbitration. The City Manager or designee shall be the final level of appeal for grievances not represented by the EGPOA.

### D. STEP 4. Arbitration.

(1) A request for binding arbitration shall be made in writing to the Human Resources Department within fifteen (15) days of the date which the grievant received a copy of the written determination of Step 3, or in the event that no Step 3 answer is received, within forty-five (45) days of the date of the Step 3 meeting.

- (2) An arbitrator may be selected by mutual agreement between the parties. However, should the parties fail to voluntarily agree upon an arbitrator, the parties shall make a joint request to the State Mediation and Conciliation Services. The parties shall request a list of seven (7) qualified arbitrators. Each party shall alternately strike one name from the list and the last remaining name shall serve as arbitrator. The first party to strike a name shall be determined by the drawing of the names of the parties.
- (3) The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding on the City, EGPOA, and the grievant. The arbitrator shall have no authority to add to or delete from the terms of this Agreement.
- (4) All fees and costs of the arbitrator and/or State Mediation and Conciliation Services shall be borne equally by the parties.
- (5) The arbitrator shall set the date, time and place of the hearing. The arbitrator shall set the date of the hearing not later than thirty (30) calendar days after selection of the arbitrator. Notice of the date, time and place of the hearing must be given by the arbitrator at least 24 hours in advance. Such notice may be given orally, by facsimile or electronic mail.
- (6) The arbitrator shall make an appropriate record of the proceedings. There shall be no stenographic record of the proceedings unless required by the arbitrator.
- (7) The hearing shall be conducted by the arbitrator in whatever manner will most expeditiously permit full presentation of the evidence and arguments of the parties. The arbitrator shall have authority to decide matters of discovery and the issuance of subpoenas.
- (8) Normally, the hearing shall be completed within one day. In unusual circumstances and for good cause, the arbitrator may schedule an additional day of hearing to be held within seven days.
- (9) There shall be no post hearing briefs unless required by the arbitrator.
- (10) The award shall be rendered promptly by the arbitrator and, unless otherwise agreed by the parties, no later than seven days from the date of the close of the hearing.
- (11) The award shall be in writing, signed by the arbitrator, and shall include a brief explanation in support of the award.

### ARTICLE XII - DISCIPLINE PROCEDURE

### 1. Policy

It is the policy of the City that discipline of employees is to be imposed on an appropriate and consistent basis and, with respect to Police Department employees, in compliance with the Public Safety Officer's Procedural Bill of Rights. When an employee engages in misconduct or when job performance is unsatisfactory in the judgment of the City, disciplinary action may be initiated. This article modifies disciplinary procedures identified in City Personnel Rules.

#### 2. Definition

As used herein, "disciplinary action" means written reprimand, suspension without pay, reduction in pay, demotion, or dismissal.

# 3. Persons Authorized to Initiate Disciplinary Action

Discipline may be initiated by those authorized in the City Personnel Rules and Regulations.

# 4. Application of Appeal Procedure

- A. Permanent Status: This article shall only apply to employees with permanent status with the City.
- B. Probationary Status: An employee in probationary status shall have no right to grieve or arbitrate release from probationary appointment. An employee who has not successfully completed the applicable probationary period shall not be entitled to an administrative appeal of a disciplinary action, but shall not waive any rights under Public Safety Officers' Procedural Bill of Rights, California Government Code section 3300, et seq.
- C. Temporary Employee: An employee in a temporary position shall have no right to grieve or arbitrate release from temporary appointment. A temporary employee shall not be entitled to an administrative appeal of a release from temporary appointment.
- D. Temporary Upgrade (Out of Class): An employee in a temporary upgrade status shall have no right to grieve or arbitrate release from temporary upgrade status. An employee in a temporary upgrade status shall not be entitled to an administrative appeal of a release from temporary upgrade status.
- E. Section 7 (Skelly Meetings) and Section 8 (Appeal of Disciplinary Action) shall not apply to written reprimands. A written reprimand shall be appealable, within ten (10) calendar days of receiving the written reprimand. The Police Chief or his/her designee shall serve as hearing officer for the administrative appeal. The administrative appeal shall serve as the employee's opportunity to refute the allegations giving rise to the written reprimand. The hearing officer shall have the ability to sustain, modify, or withdraw the written reprimand. The hearing officer's decision shall be final and not subject to further appeal.
- F. Upon the request of an employee, a written reprimand shall be removed from an employee's personnel file after two (2) years from the original date of issuance; provided, however, that the employee has not been subject to disciplinary action during the two (2) year period.
- G. A counseling memorandum, letter of instruction or similar action shall not be considered formal disciplinary action. Such measures shall be considered corrective action. The Police Chief may issue General Orders defining corrective action measures and identify those management personnel who can issue such measures. Corrective action may be appealed to the Police Chief or designee; the decision shall be final and not subject to further appeal. Discipline shall be for cause. The list of causes for disciplinary action contained in the Elk Grove Police Department Policies and Procedures, Section 340, constitutes a portion of the disciplinary standards of the Police Department. This list is not intended to cover every possible type of misconduct and does not preclude the

recommendation of disciplinary action for specific action or inaction that is detrimental to efficient department service.

# 6. Preliminary Notice of Proposed Discipline

- A. A copy of the proposed discipline shall be served upon the employee either personally, or by first class mail and certified mail, return receipt requested, to the last known address of the employee. The last known address shall be deemed to be the address that is within the employee's official personnel file. If notice is provided by mail, the employee shall be deemed to have received notice ten (10) work days after the date of mailing.
- B. The Notice of Proposed Discipline shall include:
  - (1) A statement of the nature of the disciplinary action;
  - (2) The effective date of the disciplinary action;
  - (3) A statement of the cause(s) for the disciplinary action citing the item(s) under Article XII, Section 5 above which have been violated;
  - (4) Any supporting material or documentation;
  - (5) A statement advising the employee of the right to appeal the action, the manner and time of which the appeal must be made, and the required content of the appeal; and
  - (6) The name and address of the person to whom all written communication regarding this appeal shall be sent.

# 7. Skelly Meeting

- A. An employee who is subject to disciplinary action shall have the option, within five (5) work days after receiving a Proposed Notice of Disciplinary Action, to request and participate in a Skelly Meeting. The proposed discipline shall become final if the employee fails to participate in the Skelly Meeting. Failure to request or participate in a Skelly meeting shall not preclude the employee's right to proceed to arbitration, if the Department head or designee imposes discipline.
- B. The City shall appoint a "Skelly Officer". The Skelly Officer shall meet with the employee and the employee's representative, if any, listen to arguments and receive documents presented by the employee. The Skelly Officer may recommend to the Department Head or designee that the proposed action be dismissed, modified, or sustained. Within ten (10) calendar days and in writing, the Department head or designee shall respond to the employee and the employee's representative, if applicable If the proposed discipline is sustained or modified by the Department head or designee, the disciplinary action shall be implemented. A Final Notice of Disciplinary Action shall be served in the same manner as the Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action.
- C. Upon mutual agreement, the employee and the City may agree to modify the time lines contained in this subsection

# 8. Appeal of Disciplinary Action

- A. Within ten (10) work days after receipt of the Final Notice of Disciplinary Action, with the exception of written reprimands, the disciplinary action may be appealed to arbitration. Notice of the appeal must be filed with the Human Resources Department. Failure to appeal shall constitute an exhaustion of administrative remedies and there shall be no further appeal before any court, administrative tribunal or any other forum on any legal theory or basis.
- B. An appeal of a disciplinary action to arbitration is a complaint of a permanent employee of whether there was cause for the disciplinary action taken against the employee.
- C. The parties to the discipline hearing and to the selection of the arbitrator shall be the employee, or his/her representative, and the City.
- D. An arbitrator may be selected by mutual agreement between the parties. However, should the parties fail to voluntarily agree upon an arbitrator, the parties shall make a joint request to the State Mediation and Conciliation Services. The parties shall request a list of seven (7) qualified arbitrators. Each party shall alternately strike one name from the list and the last remaining name shall serve as arbitrator. The first party to strike a name shall be determined by the drawing of names of the parties.
- E. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator and/or the State Mediation and Conciliation Services shall be shared equally by the EGPOA and the City, in the event the employee subject to the disciplinary action is represented by the EGPOA. In the event the employee subject to the disciplinary action is not represented by the EGPOA, the City shall pay the fees and expenses of the arbitrator and/or the State Mediation and Conciliation Services. The parties shall bear their own attorney fees.
- F. The arbitrator shall set the date, time and place of the hearing. The arbitrator shall set the date of the hearing not later than thirty (30) calendar days after selection of the arbitrator. Notice of the date, time and place of the hearing must be given by the arbitrator at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance. Such notice may be given orally, by facsimile or electronic mail.
- G. The employee shall be entitled to appear personally at the hearing and produce evidence.
- H. There shall be no stenographic record of the proceedings unless required by the arbitrator or mutually agreed upon by all parties.
- I. The hearing shall be conducted by the arbitrator in whatever manner will most expeditiously permit full presentation of the evidence and arguments of the parties. The arbitrator shall make an appropriate record of the proceedings. Normally, the hearing shall be completed within one day. In unusual circumstances and for good cause, the arbitrator may schedule an additional day of hearing to be held within seven days.
- J. There shall be no post hearing briefs unless required by the arbitrator.
- K. The award shall be rendered promptly by the arbitrator and, unless otherwise agreed by the parties, no later than seven days from the date of the close of the hearing.

- L. The award shall be in writing, signed by the arbitrator, and shall include a brief explanation in support of the award.
- M. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding on the parties. No appeal or review of the arbitrator's decision by Writ or other mechanism before any court, administrative tribunal or any other forum on any legal theory or basis shall be possible.

### ARTICLE XIII - REDUCTION IN FORCE

#### 1. Reduction in Force

### A. Layoff:

When it becomes necessary due to lack of work, lack of funds, or in the interest of economy, to reduce the number of employees in the Police Department, the order in which employees will be laid off within each class affected by the layoff shall be based on seniority as provided in Article XIII, Section 1, Subsection C.

### B. Area of Layoff:

The City shall determine the area(s) and positions in which layoffs may occur, including the identification of the division, work unit, class, and specific position. When a list of the affected areas and/or positions has been prepared, the City will give notice to EGPOA prior to implementation of the layoff, and upon request, shall meet with EGPOA in good faith regarding the impact of the layoff and, consistent with Article XIII, Section 1, Subsection H. Unless agreed otherwise, the following layoff procedures shall be followed:

- (1) Employees holding temporary, seasonal, part-time, probationary, or provisional appointments shall be laid off first. Employees serving in a regular part-time position shall be laid off second. Employees who have completed probation (i.e. permanent employees) shall be laid off last. Employees off work on approved leave (workers compensation, disability leave, etc.) who are identified for layoff shall be laid off in the same manner as if the employee was on active duty.
- (2) Should it become necessary to lay off permanent employees, the employees laid off shall be those with the least service credit within the identified classifications in the department. If two (2) or more employees in this circumstance possess essentially the same amount of service credit, the City Manager shall determine which person shall be laid off on the basis of efficiency and effectiveness.

Nothing in this section shall delay or limit the City's right to lay off employees.

### C. Seniority Defined:

- a. For employees hired on or after June 1, 2009, seniority shall be defined by the date of most recent appointment to the classification. Time served as a probationary employee in the class shall be included in determining seniority.
- b. If an employee promotes, demotes, or transfers into another classification, seniority shall be defined by the date of most recent appointment to that new

- classification, except a 911 Call Taker shall have no change in seniority date when promoted to a Dispatcher.
- c. If an employee subsequently promotes, or voluntarily demotes or transfers back to a classification previously held by him/her, then seniority shall be defined by the number of days served in that classification with a new date calculated based on the date the employee is reassigned to the classification, plus the number of days previously served in that same classification (counting backwards on the calendar), thereby giving the employee full credit for the time served in that classification prior to the promotion, voluntary demotion, or transfer.
- d. When two or more newly hired employees have the same seniority date, the order of seniority for those employees shall be determined by the order in which the names are drawn by lot by the Human Resources, except as stated in subsection (d) of this section.
- e. When two or more newly hired lateral police officers have the same seniority date, the order of seniority for those employees shall be determined by the date of the Basic POST certificates held by these employees. If two or more newly hired lateral police officers have the same date on his/her Basic POST certificates, then seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names are drawn by lot by the Human Resources Director.
- f. When two or more current employees in sworn classifications are promoted on the same day to the same classification, seniority in the new classification shall be determined based on their placement on the promotional eligibility list.
- g. If a Trainee promotes into an Entry Level Officer position and an Entry Level Officer is hired on the same day, the promotion shall have seniority over the newly hired Officer.
- h. When two or more current employees in non-sworn classifications are promoted on the same day to the same classification, seniority in the new classification shall be determined by the order in which the names are drawn by lot by Human Resources.

#### D. Notification:

Employees to be laid off shall be given final written notification by the City of such action. Whenever possible, such notification shall be given a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date of the layoff. At its discretion, the City may also issue preliminary written layoff notices.

### E. Right to Demote:

Any employee who is scheduled for layoff shall have a right to demote to a class in which the employee formerly held permanent status. Any employee who is scheduled for layoff in the class of Sergeant, Dispatch Supervisor or Records Supervisor will have a right to demote into the class of Police Officer, Dispatcher or Records Technician respectively, even if they did not hold permanent status in that class. Any employee scheduled for

layoff in a class outside the bargaining unit will be allowed to bump into a class in the bargaining unit if they formerly held permanent status in that class. If there is no authorized position in the class to which the employee would otherwise have a right to demote, then the employee shall be laid off from employment.

The right to demote shall be implemented as follows:

- (1) If there is only one other lower salaried class in which the employee formerly held permanent status, the employee shall be demoted to that class. If there is no vacancy in that class and the demoting employee has less seniority than all other employees in that class, the demoting employee shall be laid off from that class and from employment.
- (2) If there are two or more lower salaried classes in which the employee formerly held permanent status, the employee shall be demoted to that class in which the employee formerly held permanent status which has the highest salary. If there is no vacancy in that class, and the demoting employee has less seniority than all other employees in that class, the above process shall continue until the demoting employee either reaches a class in which the employee formerly held permanent status in which there is a vacancy or in which the employee is not the least senior employee in that class, or the employee is laid off from employment.
- (3) An employee who is least senior in a class in which there is no vacancy and to which an employee demotes from a higher class shall be laid off from that class and shall have the same right to demote as does any other employee who is laid off.
- (4) An employee demoted under this procedure shall be deemed to have exercised the employee's right to demote and to have accepted each demotion, subject to the employee's right to resign from employment.
- (5) An employee who is demoted from a class in which the employee holds permanent status shall be deemed for all purposes to have been laid off from each class from which the employee subsequently demotes or is displaced, including classes which the employee passes through because of the absence of a vacancy and insufficient seniority to occupy a position.

### F. Reemployment:

The names of employees laid off in accordance with provisions of this section shall be placed on a reemployment list. Names shall be placed on a classification reemployment list in order of seniority. In the event that a person on layoff declines reemployment to a vacant position or cannot be contacted through telephone and certified mail within fifteen (15) working days, such person's name shall be removed from the reemployment list.

A reemployment list will remain in effect for two (2) years unless specifically extended, or sooner exhausted. Upon reinstatement an employee will be eligible for all benefits acquired by the employee prior to the layoff, including prior Annual Leave accrual rates and seniority. An employee shall not receive credit for time spent on layoff in computing time for any benefit entitlement.

## G. Appeals:

Interpretations of the provisions of this section may be appealed through the grievance procedure (Article XI) of this Agreement. Such grievances must be filed within five (5) work days of final written notification of the proposed layoff. For the purpose of appealing interpretations of this section, grievances shall be filed directly with the City Manager. The filing of a grievance shall not prevent the City from implementing the layoff. The reasons or necessity for the layoff shall not be subject to the grievance procedure or appeal.

### H. Alternatives to Layoff:

The City agrees to notify EGPOA of its intent to lay off employees in the Police Department prior to sending final written layoff notices to impacted employees. The City and EGPOA agree to meet and confer in good faith on alternatives to layoff, including but not limited to, voluntary employee furloughs, mandatory employee furloughs, salary reductions, benefit reductions and other cost savings measures. The City agrees to notify EGPOA of the amount of any funding shortfall and the amount of budgetary savings necessary to mitigate the need to lay off employees. EGPOA agrees to present any alternative to layoff proposed by the City to the EGPOA membership for consideration.

Nothing in this section shall delay or limit the City's right to lay off employees.

## ARTICLE XIV – EMPLOYEE STATUS

# 1. Employment Status - Public Safety Officers' Procedural Bill of Rights (Sworn Personnel and Dispatchers)

The employment of each employee who is a sworn public safety officer with the City is subject to the procedural requirements of the Public Safety Officers' Procedural Bill of Rights, California Government Code section 3300, et seq.

#### A. Probationary Period

Sworn Personnel

Subject to the requirements of the Public Safety Officers' Procedural Bill of Rights, all new hires and newly promoted employees into the position of Police Officer Entry level shall be subject to a probationary period for the first eighteen (18) months of employment. All newly hired lateral Police Officers shall have a probationary period of twelve (12) months.

## Dispatchers and Dispatch Supervisors

All new hires and newly promoted employees into the position of Dispatcher Entry level, shall be subject to a probationary period for the first eighteen (18) months of employment. All lateral Dispatchers and Dispatcher Supervisors shall be subject to a probationary period for the first twelve (12) months of employment.

Non-Sworn Personnel

All non-sworn personnel, except Dispatchers (as described in the immediately preceding paragraph), shall be subject to a probationary period for the first twelve (12) months of employment.

## B. Objective of Probationary Period

The probationary period shall be regarded as a part of the examination process. During this period, the employee's work performance shall be closely observed and evaluated to determine the capability of the new employee in his/her position. This period will also be a time to provide an effective orientation for the employee, educating him/her in prevailing management practices, policies, and procedures, and training him/her in the tasks associated with the assignment.

## C. Completion of Probationary Period

The Chief of Police or his/her designee shall notify the appropriate supervisor and the employee concerned at least two (2) weeks prior to the expiration of any probationary period. If the performance of the employee has been satisfactory to the supervisor, he/she shall file with the Chief of Police or his/her designee a statement in writing that such employee has successfully completed the period. If the performance of the employee has not been satisfactory to the supervisor, he/she shall file with the Chief of Police or his/her designee a statement in writing that such employee has not successfully completed the period at which time appropriate job action may be taken by the Chief of Police or his/her designee in accordance with the Public Safety Officers' Procedural Bill of Rights.

## D. Extension of Probationary Period

On occasion it may be necessary to extend an employee's probationary period to ensure s/he is meeting the standards for the position. Probationary periods may be extended as follows:

- When marginal performance exists or an employee demonstrates a need for additional evaluation, upon recommendation from a supervisor and approval by the Chief of Police, the probationary period may be extended for a period not to exceed nine (9) months.
- In circumstances involving periods of extended absence, a supervisor, with the approval of the Chief of Police, may extend an employee's probationary period by either:
  - o The period(s) of the absence(s), or
  - Any period of time that would guarantee a minimum of twelve (12) months of uninterrupted service.

### ARTICLE XV – EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

#### 1. Performance Evaluation

Regular employee performance evaluations shall be made as to the efficiency, competence, conduct, and merit of City employees. The preparation and use of employee performance evaluations are for the mutual benefit of the City and the effective development of the employee to achieve desired job or career goals. Performance evaluations should be used to identify specific strengths and weaknesses in the employee's job-related performance; to acknowledge the merit of above standard performance; and to prescribe the means and methods of upgrading deficiencies to a required or desired level of performance.

## 2. Authority to Prepare Performance Evaluations

Performance evaluations shall be made on a form prescribed by the City. The Police Chief shall prepare or delegate the preparation of performance evaluations to subordinate supervisors who are most familiar with the work of the employee to be evaluated. The Police Chief shall review and approve all performance evaluations of departmental personnel prior to review with the affected employee.

## 3. Frequency and Distribution of Performance Evaluations

- A. Employee performance evaluations shall be prepared for new hire probationary employees at least every six (6) months during the probationary period and at least every three (3) months for promoted probationary employees. Employees shall be evaluated during a formal training program by daily, weekly, and monthly evaluations until successful completion of the training program.
- B. For regular full-time employees, a performance evaluation shall be submitted within ten (10) calendar days prior to the employee's anniversary date each year (original date of hire into the employee's current classification). In addition, a performance evaluation may be prepared at any time at the reasonable request of the employee or at the discretion of the employee's supervisor, when it is deemed to be necessary and appropriate.
- C. Performance evaluations shall be prepared with a copy to the employee and the employee's department file. The original shall be forwarded to the Department of Human Resources for review and retention in the employee's official personnel file.

## 4. Review with the Employee

Each performance evaluation shall be thoroughly discussed with the employee to point out areas of successful performance and areas that need improvement or are unacceptable. Employees shall also be encouraged to comment about their work performance, either in a written statement attached to the report or verbally. The employee shall sign the performance report to acknowledge awareness of its contents and discussion of the report with the evaluator. The employee's signature does not necessarily mean that the employee fully agrees with the contents of the report and may so state on the report before signing.

## 5. Salary Step Advancement

- A. Advancement from one salary step to the next through the salary range pursuant to Article V, Section 3 shall be contingent on the employee receiving an average score of 3.0 or greater on the standard performance evaluation form.
- B. Consistent with Article V, Section 5, an employee who does not receive an average score of 3.0 or greater on his/her performance evaluation shall not advance to the next higher step in the salary range. Such employee shall receive a second, interim performance evaluation not later than six (6) months after the employee's annual performance evaluation date. If the employee attains an average score of 3.0 or greater on the interim evaluation, the employee shall then advance to the next step in the salary range. If the employee receives an average score of less than 3.0 on the interim evaluation, the employee shall not advance to the next step in the salary range. Such employee shall again be eligible for advancement to a higher step when the employee's performance is again evaluated on his/her anniversary date. Any advancement to a higher salary step after a delayed successful performance evaluation shall not be retroactive. Failure to attain a score of 3.0 on a performance evaluation and failure to advance to a higher step in the salary range shall not be appealed beyond Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure (Article XI, Section 4, Subsection C).

## **ARTICLE XVI - ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENTS**

#### 1. Tuition Reimbursement

- A. Full-time employees with a minimum of six (6) months of continuous employment with the City who are earning a college or university degree that is job-related may request to be reimbursed for some of the cost of tuition and books. The schedule of reimbursement shall be as follows:
  - (1) Eighty (80%) of the cost of tuition and books up to a maximum of \$1,000 per calendar year for employees attending a Community College.
  - (2) Eighty (80%) of the cost of tuition and books up to a maximum of \$2,500 per calendar year for employees working towards a Bachelor of Arts or Bachelor of Science degree at an accredited college or university.
  - (3) Eighty (80%) of the cost of tuition and books up to a maximum of \$3,500 per calendar year for employees working towards a Master of Arts or Master of Science degree at an accredited college or university.
- B. Employees must obtain written approval from the Police Chief and the Director of Human Resources prior to taking classes for which the employee desires to be reimbursed. Reimbursement shall only be made at the conclusion of the class and where the employee has achieved a grade of "C" or better.
- C. All classes shall be taken on the employee's own time and an employee shall not be entitled to compensation.

- D. Any employee voluntarily terminating employment within twenty-four (24) months of receiving reimbursement under this Section will be responsible for repaying the City of Elk Grove the full amount of the reimbursement received. An employee involuntarily separated (termination, lay-off, or industrial disability retirement) will not be required to reimburse the City.
- E. Part-time employees working twenty (20) or more hours a week shall be eligible to receive reimbursement pursuant to items A through D above on a pro-rata basis.

## 2. Quarter Master Program

- A. Employees in classifications required by the Police Chief to wear a uniform shall participate in the City's Quarter Master Program.
  - (1) Uniforms shall be as prescribed by the City.
  - (2) The City will provide the initial issue of uniforms.
  - (3) The City will provide for the cleaning of uniforms.
  - (4) The City will replace any uniform item or equipment authorized by the department that has been lost, stolen, damaged or rendered unserviceable as a result of on-duty activity.
- B. The City shall report to PERS the estimated value of up to \$1,000 per fiscal year for each uniformed employee for purposes of issuing, cleaning, maintaining and replacing uniforms. The amount reported to PERS may vary depending on the uniform each employee is required to wear.
- C. Effective July 1, 2019, employees assigned by the Police Chief as Detectives or sworn employees who are required to wear business attire for more than fifty percent (50%) of their work week shall receive a bi-weekly clothing allowance of \$38.46 per pay period.

## **ARTICLE XVII - MISCELLANEOUS**

## 1. Joint Labor-Management Committee

The parties agree to continue the joint labor-management committee. The purpose of the committee is to jointly discuss matters within scope of representation. Either party may present issues to be discussed by the Committee. The Committee shall be made up of three representatives of the EGPOA and three representatives from the City. Upon mutual agreement, either party may bring experts or additional personnel as warranted. The committee shall meet regularly, with EGPOA representatives serving without loss of compensation.

## 2. Voluntary Wellness Program

The City of Elk Grove shall provide a Voluntary Wellness Program. The purpose of the program is to encourage the proper physical conditioning and health of sworn personnel. The Police department shall determine specific procedures and policies to implement this program. A key element shall include regular exercise programs.

Sworn personnel may be granted two (2) hours per work week of release time to take part in City sponsored exercise programs. Time spent participating in exercise programs shall be considered hours worked and employees may be required to cease exercising and perform peace officer duties. Exercise programs shall be scheduled at the discretion of appropriate supervisory personnel.

Should the Police Chief and City Manager determine that funding is available; the department shall add program elements, including additional classes and equipment to the Voluntary Wellness Program. The parties also agree to add the modification and/or expansion of the Voluntary Wellness Program as a top agenda item of the Joint Labor-Management Committee (Article XVII, Section 1).

### 3. Personnel Rules

The parties agree that personnel rules, policies and procedures governing matters not covered by this Agreement or rules, policies and procedures implementing this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect unless modified by the City. The City agrees to notify EGPOA in advance of any change to City personnel rules, policies and procedures, and to meet and confer over the impact of such changes prior to implementation.

Should any provision of this Agreement alter or conflict with any City rule, policy or procedure, this Agreement shall be controlling and supersede said City rule, policy or procedure, or parts thereof.

## 4. Meeting and Conferring During Term of Memorandum of Understanding

During the term of this Memorandum of Understanding, representatives of the City and the EGPOA may meet and confer on matters of mutual concern. Agreements reached between the parties shall be memorialized in writing and be deemed a "Side Letter" to this Memorandum of Understanding.

The City Manager is authorized to enter into a Side Letter on behalf of the City for purposes of the interpretation or administration of this Memorandum of Understanding. A Side Letter to this Memorandum of Understanding shall not be deemed valid until signed by the City Manager, approved as to form by the City Attorney, and signed by an authorized representative of the EGPOA. Side Letters agreed to during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding may be incorporated into any successor Memorandum of Understanding.

## 5. Savings Clause

If any provision of this Agreement should be held invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any such provision shall be restrained by such tribunal, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected.

## 6. Total Agreement

This Memorandum of Understanding constitutes a full and complete agreement by the parties and contains all of the matters upon which the parties have reached agreement. Therefore, except as provided herein, the City and the Association, for the duration of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated

Agreement between City of Elk Grove and

Police Officers Association (7/1/23 - 6/30/27)

to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered in this Agreement, as well as any subject or matter not referred to or covered in this Agreement.

## **ARTICLE XVIII -- TERM**

## 1. Term of Agreement

This Agreement incorporates all modifications regarding wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment. This Agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2023, and shall expire June 30, 2027.

2. Signature Clause The terms and conditions of this Memora of, 2023 by the employed below.	andum of Understanding are executed er-employee representatives whose si	this <sup>22nd</sup> day ignatures appear
CITY OF ELK GROVE	ELK GROVE POLICE O ASSOCIATION	FFICERS
Lance Delaware Otto Marra van		6/23/2023   11:26 A ef Negotiator
Jason Behrmann, City Manager	6	et Negotiator
_ (liarles Sakai	2023   3:29 PN	6/23/2023   11:34 A
ief Negotiator	), Presid	dent
_ Paul Solomon6/23, ssistant Chief of Police	/2023   8:55 <u>                                   </u>	6/23/2023   12:11 sident
Melissa Rojas 6/22/2 Human Resources Direct	2023   3:29 PM	6/23/2023   1:28
	ctor , offic	cer Director
Annroved as to form:	ATTEST:	
Jonathan P. Hobbs 6/22/2023   1	11:11 AM PDT	
Jonathan Hopps, Oity Attorney		
	Date:	

PΜ

PM

# ATTACHMENT A (Article V, Section 4)

## **POST Incentive Request Form**

I,		state that I have completed all of the
requir	rements to receive my:	
Int	termediate POST certificate	Advanced POST certificate
	e not yet received my POST certificate teen verified by the Police Department P	but have applied for it and a copy of that application rofessional Standards.
related City	d to the above-described POST certification	eing to start paying me the education incentive pay ate before I have received it, I agree to reimburse the centive pay related to the above-described POST cate is denied by POST for any reason.
	e event my POST certificate is denied, it is be reversed, and I agree to reimburse	I understand and agree that my education incentive the City as follows (select one):
	Lump sum payroll deduction within the total education incentive pay subjection	30 days of the date the City's statement containing ect to reimbursement.
		ions for the full amount of the education incentive ame amounts and pay periods in which the payment
	Deduction of accrued leave	
	ner understand that if I am required to requences to which I will be solely respon	imburse the City as outlined above, there may be tax asible.
of the	<u>*</u>	immediately forward a copy to the appropriate staff rds, who shall then forward a copy to the City Human
Dated	l:	_
Signa	ture:	

## **EXHIBIT B**

PICALITARER  POA  TO DEVOKEDING  POA  POA  TO DEVOKEDING  POA  TO	CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
Property				hourly							
MON	JII CALL TAKEN	TOA	Ci	•							
ACCOUNTING MANAGER  ACCOUN											
ACCOUNTANT  ACCOUN											
Discrept						,	,	,	,		,
MON   131   Mourly   6,026   6,328   6,644   6,977   7,326   7,692   8,077   8,000   96,923   8,000   96,923   8,000	ACCOUNTANT	NON	86	hourly	34.77	36.51	38.33	40.25	42.26	44.38	46.60
ACCOUNTING MANAGER  NON				bi-weekly	2,781	2,921	3,067	3,220	3,381	3,550	3,728
ACCOUNTING MANAGER  ***RONN******************************				monthly	6,026	6,328	6,644	6,977	7,326	7,692	8,077
Property				annual	72,315	75,933	79,732	83,720	87,909	92,306	96,923
ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN  NON 56 hourly 13,277 27,06 28.41 29.83 31.33 32.89 34.54 10,000	ACCOUNTING MANAGER	NON	131	hourly	54.46	57.18	60.04	63.05	66.20	69.51	72.99
ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN  NON 56 hourly 13,277 27,06 28.41 29.83 31.33 32.89 34.54 10,000				bi-weekly	4,357		4,804		5,296		
ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN  NON				monthly			10,408	10,928	11,475		
Part				annual	113,276	118,942	124,891	131,137		144,583	151,814
Part	ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN	NON	56	hourly	25.77	27.06	28.41	29.83	31.33	32.89	34.54
ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST I  ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST I  NON  ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST II  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT  NON  ABB hourly bi-weekly 1,903 1,998 2,098 2,095				bi-weekly	2,062	2,165		2,387	2,506	2,632	2,763
ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST I  NON 87 hourly 15.12 36.87 38.72 40.65 42.69 44.82 47.05 14.86 14				monthly							
Di-weekly monthly found foun				annual							
ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST II  NON 97 hourly 38.80 40.74 42.78 44.92 47.17 49.53 52.00 hourly 31.04 3.259 3.422 3.594 3.773 3.962 4.160 monthly 6.725 7.062 7.415 7.786 81.75 8.584 9.014 annual 80.704 84.741 88.980 93.431 98.10 108.165	ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST I	NON	87	hourly	35.12	36.87	38.72	40.65	42.69	44.82	47.06
ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST II  NON 97 hourly 38.80 40.74 42.78 44.92 47.17 49.53 52.00 bi-weekly 31.04 3.259 3.422 3.594 3.773 3.962 4.160 monthly 67.75 7.062 7.415 7.786 81.775 85.84 9.014 annual 80.704 84.741 88.980 93.431 98.105 103.012 108.165  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT  NON 48 hourly 23.79 24.98 26.23 27.54 28.92 30.37 31.89 bi-weekly 1.903 1.998 2.098 2.203 2.314 2.429 2.551 monthly 4.124 4.330 4.547 4.774 5.013 5.264 5.527 annual 49.482 51.955 54.555 57.288 60.155 63.165 66.325  ANIMAL CARE ASSISTANT  NON 20 hourly 1.908 1.808 1.918 1.818 1.918 20.82 21.86 22.95 24.10 bi-weekly 1.438 1.510 1.586 1.665 1.749 1.836 1.928 monthly 3.117 3.273 3.47 3.609 3.789 3.979 4.178				bi-weekly	2,809	2,950	3,097	3,252	3,415	3,586	3,765
ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST II  NON  P7  hourly bi-weekly 3,104 3,259 3,422 3,594 3,773 3,962 4,160 8,175 8,584 9,014 annual 80,704 84,741 88,980 93,431 98,105 103,012 108,165  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT  NON  ABMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT  NON  NON  ABMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT  ALICH ASSISTA				monthly	6,087	6,391	6,711	7,047	7,399	7,769	8,158
Di-weekly monthly honthly ho				annual	73,041	76,695	80,531	84,560	88,790	93,232	97,895
MON	ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST II	NON	97	hourly	38.80	40.74	42.78	44.92	47.17	49.53	52.00
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT  NON  48  hourly bi-weekly nonthly 4,124 4,330 4,547 4,774 5,013 5,264 5,527 annual  ANIMAL CARE ASSISTANT  NON  20  hourly bi-weekly bi-weekly bi-weekly bi-weekly 1,903 1,998 2,098 2,098 2,203 2,314 2,429 2,551 8,001 5,527 5,288 60,155 63,165 66,325				bi-weekly	3,104	3,259	3,422	3,594	3,773	3,962	4,160
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT  NON 48 hourly 23.79 24.98 26.23 27.54 28.92 30.37 31.89 bi-weekly 1,903 1,998 2,098 2,203 2,314 2,429 2,551 monthly 4,124 4,330 4,547 4,774 5,013 5,264 5,527 annual 49,482 51,959 54,559 57,288 60,155 63,165 66,325  ANIMAL CARE ASSISTANT  NON 20 hourly 17.98 18.88 19.83 20.82 21.86 22.95 24.10 bi-weekly 1,438 1,510 1,586 1,665 1,749 1,836 1,928 monthly 3,117 3,273 3,437 3,609 3,789 3,979 4,178				monthly	6,725	7,062	7,415	7,786	8,175	8,584	9,014
Di-weekly   1,903   1,998   2,098   2,203   2,314   2,429   2,551				annual	80,704	84,741	88,980	93,431	98,105	103,012	108,165
Monthly 4,124 4,330 4,547 4,774 5,013 5,264 5,527 annual 49,482 51,959 54,559 57,288 60,155 63,165 66,325  ANIMAL CARE ASSISTANT  NON 20 hourly 17.98 18.88 19.83 20.82 21.86 22.95 24.10 bi-weekly 1,438 1,510 1,586 1,665 1,749 1,836 1,928 monthly 3,117 3,273 3,437 3,609 3,789 3,979 4,178	ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT	NON	48	hourly	23.79	24.98	26.23	27.54	28.92	30.37	31.89
ANIMAL CARE ASSISTANT  NON 20 hourly 17.98 18.88 19.83 20.82 21.86 22.95 24.10 bi-weekly monthly 3,117 3,273 3,437 3,609 3,789 3,979 4,178				bi-weekly	1,903	1,998	2,098	2,203	2,314	2,429	2,551
ANIMAL CARE ASSISTANT  NON 20 hourly 17.98 18.88 19.83 20.82 21.86 22.95 24.10 bi-weekly 5i-weekly 7,438 1,510 1,586 1,665 1,749 1,836 1,928 1,928 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,748 1,749 1,748 1,7				monthly	4,124	4,330	4,547	4,774	5,013	5,264	5,527
bi-weekly 1,438 1,510 1,586 1,665 1,749 1,836 1,928 monthly 3,117 3,273 3,437 3,609 3,789 3,979 4,178				annual	49,482	51,959	54,559	57,288	60,155	63,165	66,325
monthly 3,117 3,273 3,437 3,609 3,789 3,979 4,178	ANIMAL CARE ASSISTANT	NON	20	hourly	17.98	18.88	19.83	20.82	21.86	22.95	24.10
				bi-weekly	1,438	1,510	1,586	1,665	1,749	1,836	1,928
annual 37,400 39,272 41,238 43,302 45,469 47,744 50,134				monthly	3,117	3,273	3,437	3,609	3,789	3,979	4,178
				annual	37,400	39,272	41,238	43,302	45,469	47,744	50,134

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
ANIMAL CARE SPECIALIST	NON	34	hourly	20.68	21.72	22.81	23.95	25.14	26.40	27.72
			bi-weekly	1,655	1,737	1,824	1,916	2,012	2,112	2,218
			monthly	3,585	3,765	3,953	4,151	4,358	4,577	4,806
			annual	43,021	45,174	47,435	49,809	52,301	54,918	57,666
ANIMAL CARE SUPERVISOR-KENNEL	NON	63	hourly	27.64	29.02	30.47	31.99	33.59	35.28	37.04
			bi-weekly	2,211	2,321	2,438	2,560	2,688	2,822	2,963
			monthly	4,790	5,030	5,281	5,546	5,823	6,114	6,420
			annual	57,481	60,357	63,377	66,547	69,877	73,373	77,043
ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER	POA	AGP	hourly	26.20	27.51	28.89	30.33	31.85	33.44	35.11
			bi-weekly	2,096	2,201	2,311	2,426	2,548	2,675	2,809
			monthly	4,541	4,768	5,007	5,257	5,520	5,796	6,086
			annual	54,495	57,220	60,081	63,084	66,240	69,551	73,029
ANIMAL SERVICES MANAGER	NON	125	hourly	51.30	53.86	56.56	59.39	62.36	65.48	68.75
			bi-weekly	4,104	4,309	4,525	4,751	4,989	5,238	5,500
			monthly	8,892	9,336	9,803	10,294	10,809	11,349	11,917
			annual	106,699	112,036	117,640	123,524	129,702	136,189	143,001
ANIMAL SERVICES SUPERVISOR	NON	77	hourly	31.78	33.37	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.57	42.60
			bi-weekly	2,542	2,670	2,803	2,943	3,091	3,245	3,408
			monthly	5,509	5,784	6,074	6,377	6,697	7,032	7,383
			annual	66,103	69,410	72,883	76,529	80,358	84,378	88,598
ANIMAL SERVICES VOLUNTEER/EVENTS COORDINATOR	NON	63	hourly	27.64	29.02	30.47	31.99	33.59	35.28	37.04
			bi-weekly	2,211	2,321	2,438	2,560	2,688	2,822	2,963
			monthly	4,790	5,030	5,281	5,546	5,823	6,114	6,420
			annual	57,481	60,357	63,377	66,547	69,877	73,373	77,043
ASSISTANT CHIEF OF POLICE	NON	179	hourly	87.86	92.26	96.87	101.71	106.80	112.14	117.75
			bi-weekly	7,029	7,380	7,750	8,137	8,544	8,971	9,420
			monthly	15,229	15,991	16,791	17,630	18,512	19,438	20,410
			annual	182,752	191,892	201,488	211,565	222,145	233,254	244,919
ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY	NON	173	hourly	82.76	86.90	91.25	95.81	100.60	105.64	110.92
			bi-weekly	6,621	6,952	7,300	7,665	8,048	8,451	8,873
			monthly	14,346	15,063	15,817	16,608	17,438	18,310	19,226
			annual	172,149	180,758	189,798	199,290	209,257	219,722	230,710

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
ASSISTANT CITY CLERK	NON	102	hourly	40.78	42.82	44.97	47.22	49.58	52.06	54.66
			bi-weekly	3,263	3,426	3,597	3,777	3,966	4,165	4,373
			monthly	7,069	7,423	7,794	8,184	8,593	9,023	9,475
			annual	84,831	89,074	93,530	98,209	103,121	108,279	113,695
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER	NON	180	hourly	88.74	93.18	97.84	102.73	107.87	113.26	118.93
			bi-weekly	7,099	7,454	7,827	8,219	8,630	9,061	9,514
			monthly	15,382	16,151	16,959	17,807	18,697	19,633	20,614
			annual	184,582	193,813	203,506	213,683	224,369	235,590	247,371
ASSISTANT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR	NON	133	hourly	55.56	58.34	61.25	64.32	67.53	70.91	74.46
			bi-weekly	4,445	4,667	4,900	5,145	5,403	5,673	5,957
			monthly	9,630	10,111	10,617	11,148	11,706	12,291	12,906
			annual	115,557	121,337	127,406	133,778	140,469	147,494	154,871
ASSISTANT ENGINEER	NON	92	hourly	36.91	38.76	40.70	42.73	44.87	47.12	49.47
			bi-weekly	2,953	3,101	3,256	3,419	3,590	3,769	3,958
			monthly	6,398	6,718	7,054	7,407	7,778	8,167	8,575
			annual	76,777	80,618	84,651	88,885	93,331	98,000	102,902
ASSISTANT PLANNER	NON	77	hourly	31.78	33.37	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.57	42.60
			bi-weekly	2,542	2,670	2,803	2,943	3,091	3,245	3,408
			monthly	5,509	5,784	6,074	6,377	6,697	7,032	7,383
			annual	66,103	69,410	72,883	76,529	80,358	84,378	88,598
ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER	NON	107	hourly	42.87	45.01	47.27	49.63	52.11	54.72	57.46
			bi-weekly	3,430	3,601	3,781	3,970	4,169	4,378	4,596
			monthly	7,431	7,802	8,193	8,603	9,033	9,485	9,959
			annual	89,169	93,629	98,313	103,230	108,394	113,815	119,508
ASSOCIATE PLANNER	NON	92	hourly	36.91	38.76	40.70	42.73	44.87	47.12	49.47
			bi-weekly	2,953	3,101	3,256	3,419	3,590	3,769	3,958
			monthly	6,398	6,718	7,054	7,407	7,778	8,167	8,575
			annual	76,777	80,618	84,651	88,885	93,331	98,000	102,902
BUDGET MANAGER	NON	128	hourly	52.85	55.50	58.27	61.19	64.25	67.46	70.84
			bi-weekly	4,228	4,440	4,662	4,895	5,140	5,397	5,667
			monthly	9,162	9,620	10,101	10,606	11,137	11,694	12,279
			annual	109,938	115,437	121,211	127,274	133,640	140,324	147,342

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
CAPTAIN	PMA	BFA	hourly	79.98	83.98	88.18	92.59	97.22	102.08	107.19
			bi-weekly	6,399	6,719	7,055	7,407	7,778	8,167	8,575
			monthly	13,864	14,557	15,285	16,049	16,852	17,694	18,579
			annual	166,366	174,684	183,418	192,589	202,219	212,329	222,945
CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER	NON	159	hourly	71.99	75.59	79.37	83.34	87.51	91.88	96.48
			bi-weekly	5,759	6,047	6,350	6,667	7,001	7,351	7,718
			monthly	12,478	13,102	13,757	14,445	15,168	15,926	16,723
			annual	149,736	157,225	165,089	173,345	182,014	191,117	200,675
CHIEF OF POLICE	NON	184	hourly	92.35	96.97	101.82	106.91	112.25	117.87	123.76
			bi-weekly	7,388	7,757	8,145	8,553	8,980	9,429	9,901
			monthly	16,007	16,808	17,648	18,531	19,457	20,431	21,452
			annual	192,085	201,691	211,778	222,369	233,489	245,166	257,426
CITY ATTORNEY	CONTRACT		annual	296,595.56		Effecti	ve June 30,	2022		
CITY CLERK	CONTRACT		annual	155,881.01		Effectiv	e March 12,	2023		
CITY COUNCIL MEMBER/MAYOR	ELECTED		monthly	800.00						
CITY MANAGER	CONTRACT		annual	295,191.33		Effectiv	e January 1,	2023		
CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER I	NON	63	hourly	27.64	29.02	30.47	31.99	33.59	35.28	37.04
			bi-weekly	2,211	2,321	2,438	2,560	2,688	2,822	2,963
			monthly	4,790	5,030	5,281	5,546	5,823	6,114	6,420
			annual	57,481	60,357	63,377	66,547	69,877	73,373	77,043
CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER II	NON	73	hourly	30.54	32.06	33.67	35.35	37.12	38.98	40.93
			bi-weekly	2,443	2,565	2,693	2,828	2,970	3,118	3,274
			monthly	5,293	5,558	5,836	6,128	6,434	6,756	7,094
			annual	63,516	66,694	70,030	73,534	77,213	81,075	85,131
CODE ENFORCEMENT MANAGER	NON	117	hourly	47.36	49.73	52.22	54.83	57.58	60.46	63.48
			bi-weekly	3,789	3,979	4,178	4,387	4,606	4,837	5,078
			monthly	8,210	8,621	9,052	9,505	9,980	10,479	11,003
			annual	98,519	103,447	108,621	114,055	119,759	125,749	132,039
COMMUNICATIONS BUREAU MANAGER	NON	117	hourly	47.36	49.73	52.22	54.83	57.58	60.46	63.48
			bi-weekly	3,789	3,979	4,178	4,387	4,606	4,837	5,078
			monthly	8,210	8,621	9,052	9,505	9,980	10,479	11,003
			annual	98,519	103,447	108,621	114,055	119,759	125,749	132,039

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
COMMUNITY CENTER ATTENDANT	NON	14	hourly	16.93	17.78	18.67	19.61	20.59	21.62	22.70
			bi-weekly	1,355	1,422	1,494	1,568	1,647	1,729	1,816
			monthly	2,935	3,082	3,236	3,398	3,568	3,747	3,934
			annual	35,221	36,984	38,835	40,779	42,820	44,963	47,213
COMMUNITY CENTER COORDINATOR	NON	87	hourly	35.12	36.87	38.72	40.65	42.69	44.82	47.06
			bi-weekly	2,809	2,950	3,097	3,252	3,415	3,586	3,765
			monthly	6,087	6,391	6,711	7,047	7,399	7,769	8,158
			annual	73,041	76,695	80,531	84,560	88,790	93,232	97,895
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND GOVERNMENT RELATIONS MANAGER	NON	123	hourly	50.29	52.80	55.44	58.21	61.13	64.18	67.39
			bi-weekly	4,023	4,224	4,435	4,657	4,890	5,135	5,391
			monthly	8,716	9,152	9,610	10,090	10,595	11,125	11,682
			annual	104,593	109,824	115,318	121,085	127,142	133,501	140,178
COMMUNITY EVENTS AND PROJECTS COORDINATOR	NON	87	hourly	35.12	36.87	38.72	40.65	42.69	44.82	47.06
			bi-weekly	2,809	2,950	3,097	3,252	3,415	3,586	3,765
			monthly	6,087	6,391	6,711	7,047	7,399	7,769	8,158
			annual	73,041	76,695	80,531	84,560	88,790	93,232	97,895
COMMUNITY EVENT CENTER MANAGER	NON	126	hourly	51.81	54.40	57.12	59.98	62.98	66.13	69.44
			bi-weekly	4,145	4,352	4,570	4,799	5,039	5,291	5,555
			monthly	8,981	9,430	9,902	10,397	10,917	11,463	12,036
			annual	107,768	113,159	118,819	124,762	131,002	137,554	144,433
COMMUNITY EVENTS PROGRAM MANAGER	NON	106	hourly	42.44	44.57	46.80	49.14	51.60	54.18	56.89
			bi-weekly	3,396	3,565	3,744	3,931	4,128	4,334	4,551
			monthly	7,357	7,725	8,111	8,517	8,943	9,391	9,860
			annual	88,284	92,700	97,337	102,206	107,318	112,686	118,322
COMMUNITY EVENTS SPECIALIST	NON	57	hourly	26.03	27.33	28.70	30.13	31.64	33.22	34.89
			bi-weekly	2,082	2,186	2,296	2,411	2,531	2,658	2,791
			monthly	4,511	4,737	4,974	5,223	5,484	5,759	6,047
			annual	54,137	56,846	59,691	62,677	65,813	69,106	72,563
COMMUNITY SERVICES OFFICER	NON	56	hourly	25.77	27.06	28.41	29.83	31.33	32.89	34.54
			bi-weekly	2,062	2,165	2,273	2,387	2,506	2,632	2,763
			monthly	4,467	4,690	4,925	5,171	5,430	5,702	5,987
			annual	53,599	56,281	59,097	62,054	65,159	68,419	71,842
COUNCIL ASSISTANT			hourly	15.50						

DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY   1,004   1,005	CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
Monthly   6,725   7,062   7,415   7,766   8,175   8,584   9,01   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   103,012   108,165   108,000	CRIME ANALYST	NON	97	hourly	38.80	40.74	42.78	44.92	47.17	49.53	52.00
Annual 80,704 84,741 88,980 93,431 98,105 103,012 108,16  CUSTOMER SERVICE SPECIALIST  NON 42				bi-weekly	3,104	3,259	3,422	3,594	3,773	3,962	4,160
CUSTOMER SERVICE SPECIALIST  NON 42   hourly   22.41   23.53   24.70   25.94   27.24   28.60   3.00   2.00				monthly	6,725	7,062	7,415	7,786	8,175	8,584	9,014
DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY   1,82   1,96   2,075   2,179   2,288   2,40   monthly   3,84   4,078   4,282   4,46   4,721   4,957   5,20   5,20   4,600   48,335   51,344   53,555   56,655   59,489   52,466   5,489   52,466   5,489   52,466   5,489   52,466   5,489   52,466   5,489				annual	80,704	84,741	88,980	93,431	98,105	103,012	108,165
Monthly and a 4,078   4,282   4,496   4,721   4,957   5,20   5,	CUSTOMER SERVICE SPECIALIST	NON	42	hourly	22.41	23.53	24.70	25.94	27.24	28.60	30.03
Annual 46,603 48,935 51,384 53,955 56,655 59,889 62,465 curstomer service supervisor annual 46,603 48,935 51,384 53,955 56,655 59,889 62,465 curstomer service supervisor annual 27,91 29,31 30,78 32,31 33,93 35,63 37,4 betweeley 2,233 2,345 2,462 2,585 2,715 2,850 2,99 78,81 annual 58,057 60,602 64,013 67,215 70,578 74,109 77,81 annual 58,057 60,602 64,013 67,215 70,578 74,109 77,81 annual 113,276 118,942 124,891 131,137 137,696 144,583 151,81 annual 113,276 118,942 124,891 131,137 137,696 144,583 151,81 annual 66,103 69,410 72,883 76,529 80,358 84,378 88,59 annual 167,080 175,436 184,210 193,422 203,096 213,252 223,91 annual 188,263 145,179 152,440 160,064 168,069 176,747 185,30 annual 188,263 145,179 152,460 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,30 annual 188,263 145,179 152,460 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,30 annual 188,263 145,179 152,460 160,064 168,069 176,474 1				bi-weekly	1,792	1,882	1,976	2,075	2,179	2,288	2,403
CUSTOMER SERVICE SUPERVISOR  NON  64				monthly	3,884	4,078	4,282	4,496	4,721	4,957	5,206
DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY   NON   131   Nourly   5.4.46   5.7.18   6.0.0   6.0.5   6.6.20   6.9.51   7.7.9.5   7.8.10   7.8.11				annual	46,603	48,935	51,384	53,955	56,655	59,489	62,466
Monthly annual   58,05   60,962   64,013   67,215   70,578   74,109   77,811	CUSTOMER SERVICE SUPERVISOR	NON	64	hourly	27.91	29.31	30.78	32.31	33.93	35.63	37.41
DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY  NON 131				bi-weekly	2,233	2,345	2,462	2,585	2,715	2,850	2,993
DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY  NON 131 hourly 54.46 57.18 60.04 63.05 66.20 69.51 72.09 bi-weekly 4,357 4,575 4,804 5,044 5,296 5,561 5,83 monthly 9,440 9,912 10,408 10,928 11,475 12,049 12,65 annual 113,276 118,942 124,891 131,137 137,696 144,583 151,81    DEPUTY CITY CLERK/RECORDS MANAGER  NON 77 hourly 31.78 33.37 35.04 36.79 38.63 40.57 42,65 bi-weekly 5,509 5,784 6,074 6,377 6,697 7,032 7,38 annual 66,103 69,410 72,883 76,529 80,358 84,378 88,59    DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  NON 170 hourly 80.33 84,34 88.56 92.99 97.64 102.53 107.6 monthly 13,923 14,620 15,351 16,119 16,925 17,771 18,66 annual 167,080 175,436 184,210 193,422 203,096 213,252 223,91    DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER  NON 151 hourly 66.47 69.80 73.29 76.95 80.80 84.84 89.0 bi-weekly 5,318 5,584 5,663 6,156 6,464 6,787 7,12 monthly 11,522 12,098 12,703 13,339 14,006 14,706 15,444 annual 138,263 145,179 152,440 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,00 DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 164 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.75 14.69    DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 164 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.75 14.69    DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 164 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.75 14.69    DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 164 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.75 14.69    DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 165 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.75 14.69    DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 165 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.75 14.69    DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS 1.66 6.78 6.78 6.78 6.78 6.78 6.78 6.78 6				monthly	4,838	5,080	5,334	5,601	5,882	6,176	6,485
DEPUTY CITY CLERK/RECORDS MANAGER   NON   77   Nourly   11,327   14,620   14,241				annual	58,057	60,962	64,013	67,215	70,578	74,109	77,816
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  NON 77 hourly 31.78 33.37 35.04 36.79 38.63 40.57 42.65	DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY	NON	131	hourly	54.46	57.18	60.04	63.05	66.20	69.51	72.99
DEPUTY CITY CLERK/RECORDS MANAGER  NON 77 hourly 5i-weekly 5,509 5,784 6,074 6,377 6,697 7,032 7,38 annual 66,103 69,410 72,883 76,529 80,358 84,378 88,59  DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  NON 170 hourly 80,33 84,34 88,56 92,99 97,64 102,53 107,6 9i-weekly 6,426 6,748 7,085 7,439 7,811 8,202 8,61 monthly 13,923 14,620 15,351 16,119 16,925 17,771 18,66 annual 167,080 175,436 184,210 193,422 203,096 213,252 223,91  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER  NON 151 hourly 66,47 69,80 73,29 76,95 80,80 84,84 89,0 bi-weekly 5,181 5,584 5,685 6,165 6,464 6,787 7,12 monthly 11,522 12,098 12,033 14,006 14,706 15,476 160,064 160,069 176,474 185,30  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 161 hourly 63,24 66,40 69,73 73,21 76,88 80,72 84,77 86,78 80				bi-weekly	4,357	4,575	4,804	5,044	5,296	5,561	5,839
DEPUTY CITY CLERK/RECORDS MANAGER  NON 77 hourly 31.78 33.37 35.04 36.79 38.63 40.57 42.6 bi-weekly 2,542 2,670 2,803 2,943 3,091 3,245 3,40 monthly 5,509 5,784 6,074 6,377 6,697 7,032 7,38 annual 66,103 69,410 72,883 76,529 80,358 84,378 88,59 annual 66,103 69,410 72,883 76,529 80,358 84,378 88,59 DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  NON 170 hourly 80.33 84.34 88.56 92.99 97.64 102.53 107.6 bi-weekly 6,426 6,748 7,085 7,439 7,811 8,202 8,61 monthly 13,923 14,620 15,351 16,119 16,925 17,771 18,660 annual 167,080 175,436 184,210 193,422 203,096 213,252 223,91				monthly	9,440	9,912	10,408	10,928	11,475	12,049	12,651
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER   NON   170   hourly   80.33   84.34   88.56   92.99   97.64   102.53   107.6				annual	113,276	118,942	124,891	131,137	137,696	144,583	151,814
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  NON  170  170  NON  170  NON  170  NON  170  NON  170  NON  170  NON  170  170  170  170  170  170  170  17	DEPUTY CITY CLERK/RECORDS MANAGER	NON	77	hourly	31.78	33.37	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.57	42.60
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  NON 170 hourly 80.33 84.34 88.56 92.99 97.64 102.53 107.6 bi-weekly 6,426 6,748 7,085 7,439 7,811 8,202 8,61 monthly 13,923 14,620 15,351 16,119 16,925 17,771 18,66 annual 167,080 175,436 184,210 193,422 203,096 213,252 223,91  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER  NON 151 hourly 66.47 69.80 73.29 76.95 80.80 84.84 89.0 bi-weekly 5,318 5,584 5,863 6,156 6,464 6,787 7,12 monthly 11,522 12,098 12,703 13,339 14,006 14,706 15,44 annual 138,263 145,179 152,440 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,30  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 146 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.7 bi-weekly 5,059 5,312 5,578 5,857 6,150 6,458 6,78 monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,699				bi-weekly	2,542	2,670	2,803	2,943	3,091	3,245	3,408
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  NON 170 hourly 80.33 84.34 88.56 92.99 97.64 102.53 107.6 bi-weekly 6,426 6,748 7,085 7,439 7,811 8,202 8,61 monthly 13,923 14,620 15,351 16,119 16,925 17,771 18,66 annual 167,080 175,436 184,210 193,422 203,096 213,252 223,91  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER  NON 151 hourly 66.47 69.80 73.29 76.95 80.80 84.84 89.0 bi-weekly 5,318 5,584 5,863 6,156 6,464 6,787 7,12 monthly 11,522 12,098 12,703 13,339 14,006 14,706 15,44 annual 138,263 145,179 152,440 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,30  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 146 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.7 bi-weekly 5,059 5,312 5,578 5,857 6,150 6,458 6,788 monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,699				monthly	5,509	5,784	6,074	6,377	6,697	7,032	7,383
DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER  NON 151 hourly 13,923 14,620 15,351 16,119 16,925 17,771 18,66 annual 167,080 175,436 184,210 193,422 203,096 213,252 223,91  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER  NON 151 hourly 66.47 69.80 73.29 76.95 80.80 84.84 89.0 bi-weekly 5,318 5,584 5,863 6,156 6,464 6,787 7,12 monthly 11,522 12,098 12,703 13,339 14,006 14,706 15,44 annual 138,263 145,179 152,440 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,30  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 146 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.7 bi-weekly 5,059 5,312 5,578 5,857 6,150 6,458 6,78 monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,69				annual	66,103	69,410	72,883	76,529	80,358	84,378	88,598
DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER  NON 151 hourly 66.47 69.80 73.29 76.95 80.80 84.84 89.0 bi-weekly 5,318 5,584 5,863 6,156 6,464 6,787 7,12 monthly 11,522 12,098 12,703 13,339 14,006 14,706 15,444 annual 138,263 145,179 152,440 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,30 DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 146 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.7 bi-weekly 5,059 5,312 5,578 5,857 6,150 6,458 6,78 monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,69	DEPUTY CITY MANAGER	NON	170	hourly	80.33	84.34	88.56	92.99	97.64	102.53	107.65
DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER  NON 151 hourly 66.47 69.80 73.29 76.95 80.80 84.84 89.0 bi-weekly 5,318 5,584 5,863 6,156 6,464 6,787 7,12 monthly 11,522 12,098 12,703 13,339 14,006 14,706 15,44 annual 138,263 145,179 152,440 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,30  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 146 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.7 bi-weekly 5,059 5,312 5,578 5,857 6,150 6,458 6,78 monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,69				bi-weekly	6,426	6,748	7,085	7,439	7,811	8,202	8,612
DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER  NON 151 hourly 66.47 69.80 73.29 76.95 80.80 84.84 89.0 bi-weekly 5,318 5,584 5,863 6,156 6,464 6,787 7,12 monthly 11,522 12,098 12,703 13,339 14,006 14,706 15,44 annual 138,263 145,179 152,440 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,30  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 146 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.7 bi-weekly 5,059 5,312 5,578 5,857 6,150 6,458 6,78 monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,69				monthly	13,923	14,620	15,351	16,119	16,925	17,771	18,660
bi-weekly   5,318   5,584   5,863   6,156   6,464   6,787   7,12   monthly   11,522   12,098   12,703   13,339   14,006   14,706   15,44   annual   138,263   145,179   152,440   160,064   168,069   176,474   185,30				annual	167,080	175,436	184,210	193,422	203,096	213,252	223,917
monthly 11,522 12,098 12,703 13,339 14,006 14,706 15,44 annual 138,263 145,179 152,440 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,30  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 146 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.7 bi-weekly 5,059 5,312 5,578 5,857 6,150 6,458 6,78 monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,69	DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER	NON	151	hourly	66.47	69.80	73.29	76.95	80.80	84.84	89.09
annual 138,263 145,179 152,440 160,064 168,069 176,474 185,30  DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 146 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.7  bi-weekly 5,059 5,312 5,578 5,857 6,150 6,458 6,78  monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,69				bi-weekly	5,318	5,584	5,863	6,156	6,464	6,787	7,127
DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS  NON 146 hourly 63.24 66.40 69.73 73.21 76.88 80.72 84.7  bi-weekly 5,059 5,312 5,578 5,857 6,150 6,458 6,78  monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,69				monthly	11,522	12,098	12,703	13,339	14,006	14,706	15,442
bi-weekly 5,059 5,312 5,578 5,857 6,150 6,458 6,78 monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,69				annual	138,263	145,179	152,440	160,064	168,069	176,474	185,300
monthly 10,962 11,510 12,086 12,690 13,325 13,991 14,69	DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-OPERATIONS	NON	146	hourly	63.24	66.40	69.73	73.21	76.88	80.72	84.76
				bi-weekly	5,059	5,312	5,578	5,857	6,150	6,458	6,781
annual 131,543 138,122 145,030 152,284 159,900 167,897 176,29				monthly	10,962	11,510	12,086	12,690	13,325	13,991	14,691
				annual	131,543	138,122	145,030	152,284	159,900	167,897	176,294

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR	NON	161	hourly	73.44	77.11	80.97	85.02	89.27	93.73	98.42
			bi-weekly	5,875	6,169	6,477	6,801	7,141	7,499	7,874
			monthly	12,729	13,366	14,034	14,736	15,473	16,247	17,060
			annual	152,750	160,390	168,411	176,834	185,678	194,964	204,714
DIRECTOR OF STRATEGIC PLANNING AND INNOVATION	NON	159	hourly	71.99	75.59	79.37	83.34	87.51	91.88	96.48
			bi-weekly	5 <i>,</i> 759	6,047	6,350	6,667	7,001	7,351	7,718
			monthly	12,478	13,102	13,757	14,445	15,168	15,926	16,723
			annual	149,736	157,225	165,089	173,345	182,014	191,117	200,675
DISPATCH SUPERVISOR	POA	PD	hourly	41.84	43.93	46.13	48.43	50.85	53.40	56.07
			bi-weekly	3,347	3,514	3,690	3,874	4,068	4,272	4,485
			monthly	7,252	7,614	7,995	8,395	8,814	9,255	9,718
			annual	87,020	91,371	95,940	100,736	105,773	111,062	116,616
DISPATCHER	POA	PE	hourly	32.33	33.94	35.64	37.42	39.29	41.26	43.32
			bi-weekly	2,586	2,716	2,851	2,994	3,144	3,301	3,466
			monthly	5,603	5,884	6,178	6,487	6,811	7,152	7,509
			annual	67,241	70,604	74,134	77,840	81,731	85,818	90,109
DRAINAGE AND COLLECTION SUPERVISOR	NON	97	hourly	38.80	40.74	42.78	44.92	47.17	49.53	52.00
			bi-weekly	3,104	3,259	3,422	3,594	3,773	3,962	4,160
			monthly	6,725	7,062	7,415	7,786	8,175	8,584	9,014
			annual	80,704	84,741	88,980	93,431	98,105	103,012	108,165
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR	NON	159	hourly	71.99	75.59	79.37	83.34	87.51	91.88	96.48
			bi-weekly	5,759	6,047	6,350	6,667	7,001	7,351	7,718
			monthly	12,478	13,102	13,757	14,445	15,168	15,926	16,723
			annual	149,736	157,225	165,089	173,345	182,014	191,117	200,675
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM MANAGER	NON	124	hourly	50.79	53.33	56.00	58.80	61.74	64.83	68.07
			bi-weekly	4,063	4,266	4,480	4,704	4,939	5,186	5,445
			monthly	8,803	9,244	9,706	10,192	10,701	11,237	11,799
			annual	105,641	110,925	116,473	122,299	128,416	134,838	141,582
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIALIST	NON	87	hourly	35.12	36.87	38.72	40.65	42.69	44.82	47.06
			bi-weekly	2,809	2,950	3,097	3,252	3,415	3,586	3,765
			monthly	6,087	6,391	6,711	7,047	7,399	7,769	8,158
			annual	73,041	76,695	80,531	84,560	88,790	93,232	97,895

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN I	NON	63	hourly	27.64	29.02	30.47	31.99	33.59	35.28	37.04
			bi-weekly	2,211	2,321	2,438	2,560	2,688	2,822	2,963
			monthly	4,790	5,030	5,281	5,546	5,823	6,114	6,420
			annual	57,481	60,357	63,377	66,547	69,877	73,373	77,043
ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN II	NON	77	hourly	31.78	33.37	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.57	42.60
			bi-weekly	2,542	2,670	2,803	2,943	3,091	3,245	3,408
			monthly	5,509	5,784	6,074	6,377	6,697	7,032	7,383
			annual	66,103	69,410	72,883	76,529	80,358	84,378	88,598
ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALIST	NON	92	hourly	36.91	38.76	40.70	42.73	44.87	47.12	49.47
			bi-weekly	2,953	3,101	3,256	3,419	3,590	3,769	3,958
			monthly	6,398	6,718	7,054	7,407	7,778	8,167	8,575
			annual	76,777	80,618	84,651	88,885	93,331	98,000	102,902
EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT	NON	77	hourly	31.78	33.37	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.57	42.60
			bi-weekly	2,542	2,670	2,803	2,943	3,091	3,245	3,408
			monthly	5,509	5,784	6,074	6,377	6,697	7,032	7,383
			annual	66,103	69,410	72,883	76,529	80,358	84,378	88,598
FACILITIES AND FLEET MANAGER	NON	122	hourly	49.79	52.28	54.89	57.64	60.52	63.55	66.73
			bi-weekly	3,983	4,182	4,391	4,611	4,842	5,084	5,338
			monthly	8,630	9,061	9,515	9,990	10,490	11,015	11,566
			annual	103,555	108,735	114,174	119,884	125,881	132,177	138,788
FACILITIES TECHNICIAN	NON	57	hourly	26.03	27.33	28.70	30.13	31.64	33.22	34.89
			bi-weekly	2,082	2,186	2,296	2,411	2,531	2,658	2,791
			monthly	4,511	4,737	4,974	5,223	5,484	5,759	6,047
			annual	54,137	56,846	59,691	62,677	65,813	69,106	72,563
FINANCE AND BUDGET ANALYST I	NON	87	hourly	35.12	36.87	38.72	40.65	42.69	44.82	47.06
			bi-weekly	2,809	2,950	3,097	3,252	3,415	3,586	3,765
			monthly	6,087	6,391	6,711	7,047	7,399	7,769	8,158
			annual	73,041	76,695	80,531	84,560	88,790	93,232	97,895
FINANCE AND BUDGET ANALYST II	NON	97	hourly	38.80	40.74	42.78	44.92	47.17	49.53	52.00
			bi-weekly	3,104	3,259	3,422	3,594	3,773	3,962	4,160
			monthly	6,725	7,062	7,415	7,786	8,175	8,584	9,014
			annual	80,704	84,741	88,980	93,431	98,105	103,012	108,165

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
FINANCE DIRECTOR	NON	165	hourly	76.42	80.25	84.26	88.47	92.90	97.54	102.42
			bi-weekly	6,114	6,420	6,741	7,078	7,432	7,803	8,194
			monthly	13,247	13,909	14,605	15,335	16,102	16,908	17,753
			annual	158,961	166,911	175,259	184,024	193,227	202,890	213,037
FINANCE MANAGER	NON	117	hourly	47.36	49.73	52.22	54.83	57.58	60.46	63.48
			bi-weekly	3,789	3,979	4,178	4,387	4,606	4,837	5,078
			monthly	8,210	8,621	9,052	9,505	9,980	10,479	11,003
			annual	98,519	103,447	108,621	114,055	119,759	125,749	132,039
FORENSIC INVESTIGATOR	POA	PG	hourly	33.36	35.02	36.78	38.61	40.54	42.57	44.70
			bi-weekly	2,668	2,802	2,942	3,089	3,244	3,406	3,576
			monthly	5,782	6,071	6,374	6,693	7,028	7,379	7,748
			annual	69,380	72,849	76,492	80,317	84,332	88,549	92,977
GIS ANALYST	NON	87	hourly	35.12	36.87	38.72	40.65	42.69	44.82	47.06
			bi-weekly	2,809	2,950	3,097	3,252	3,415	3,586	3,765
			monthly	6,087	6,391	6,711	7,047	7,399	7,769	8,158
			annual	73,041	76,695	80,531	84,560	88,790	93,232	97,895
GIS SYSTEM ADMINISTRATOR	NON	107	hourly	42.87	45.01	47.27	49.63	52.11	54.72	57.46
			bi-weekly	3,430	3,601	3,781	3,970	4,169	4,378	4,596
			monthly	7,431	7,802	8,193	8,603	9,033	9,485	9,959
			annual	89,169	93,629	98,313	103,230	108,394	113,815	119,508
GRAPHIC DESIGNER	NON	77	hourly	31.78	33.37	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.57	42.60
			bi-weekly	2,542	2,670	2,803	2,943	3,091	3,245	3,408
			monthly	5,509	5,784	6,074	6,377	6,697	7,032	7,383
			annual	66,103	69,410	72,883	76,529	80,358	84,378	88,598
GRAPHICS AND MULTIMEDIA PROGRAM MANAGER	NON	117	hourly	47.36	49.73	52.22	54.83	57.58	60.46	63.48
			bi-weekly	3,789	3,979	4,178	4,387	4,606	4,837	5,078
			monthly	8,210	8,621	9,052	9,505	9,980	10,479	11,003
			annual	98,519	103,447	108,621	114,055	119,759	125,749	132,039
HOMELESS SERVICES NAVIGATOR	NON	56	hourly	25.77	27.06	28.41	29.83	31.33	32.89	34.54
			bi-weekly	2,062	2,165	2,273	2,387	2,506	2,632	2,763
			monthly	4,467	4,690	4,925	5,171	5,430	5,702	5,987
			annual	53,599	56,281	59,097	62,054	65,159	68,419	71,842

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
HOUSING AND PUBLIC SERVICES MANAGER	NON	119	hourly	48.32	50.74	53.27	55.94	58.74	61.67	64.76
			bi-weekly	3,866	4,059	4,262	4,475	4,699	4,934	5,181
			monthly	8,375	8,794	9,234	9,696	10,181	10,690	11,225
			annual	100,503	105,531	110,809	116,352	122,171	128,282	134,698
HUMAN RESOURCES ANALYST	NON	97	hourly	38.80	40.74	42.78	44.92	47.17	49.53	52.00
			bi-weekly	3,104	3,259	3,422	3,594	3,773	3,962	4,160
			monthly	6,725	7,062	7,415	7,786	8,175	8,584	9,014
			annual	80,704	84,741	88,980	93,431	98,105	103,012	108,165
HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR	NON	160	hourly	72.71	76.35	80.16	84.17	88.38	92.80	97.44
			bi-weekly	5,817	6,108	6,413	6,734	7,071	7,424	7,796
			monthly	12,603	13,233	13,895	14,590	15,320	16,086	16,890
			annual	151,236	158,800	166,742	175,081	183,837	193,031	202,684
HUMAN RESOURCES SPECIALIST	NON	63	hourly	27.64	29.02	30.47	31.99	33.59	35.28	37.04
			bi-weekly	2,211	2,321	2,438	2,560	2,688	2,822	2,963
			monthly	4,790	5,030	5,281	5,546	5,823	6,114	6,420
			annual	57,481	60,357	63,377	66,547	69,877	73,373	77,043
IT ADMINISTRATOR	NON	136	hourly	57.24	60.11	63.11	66.27	69.58	73.06	76.72
			bi-weekly	4,579	4,808	5,049	5,302	5,567	5,845	6,137
			monthly	9,922	10,418	10,939	11,487	12,061	12,664	13,298
			annual	119,065	125,020	131,273	137,839	144,733	151,971	159,572
IT ANALYST	NON	92	hourly	36.91	38.76	40.70	42.73	44.87	47.12	49.47
			bi-weekly	2,953	3,101	3,256	3,419	3,590	3,769	3,958
			monthly	6,398	6,718	7,054	7,407	7,778	8,167	8,575
			annual	76,777	80,618	84,651	88,885	93,331	98,000	102,902
IT TECHNICIAN	NON	70	hourly	29.64	31.12	32.68	34.31	36.03	37.83	39.72
			bi-weekly	2,371	2,489	2,614	2,745	2,882	3,026	3,178
			monthly	5,137	5,394	5,664	5,947	6,245	6,557	6,885
			annual	61,642	64,726	67,964	71,365	74,935	78,684	82,620
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR	NON	92	hourly	36.91	38.76	40.70	42.73	44.87	47.12	49.47
			bi-weekly	2,953	3,101	3,256	3,419	3,590	3,769	3,958
			monthly	6,398	6,718	7,054	7,407	7,778	8,167	8,575
			annual	76,777	80,618	84,651	88,885	93,331	98,000	102,902

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
LIEUTENANT	PMA	BAA	hourly	68.99	72.44	76.07	79.87	83.86	88.06	92.46
			bi-weekly	5,520	5,796	6,085	6,390	6,709	7,045	7,397
			monthly	11,959	12,557	13,185	13,844	14,536	15,263	16,026
			annual	143,509	150,685	158,219	166,130	174,436	183,158	192,315
LEGAL EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT	NON	77	hourly	31.78	33.37	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.57	42.60
			bi-weekly	2,542	2,670	2,803	2,943	3,091	3,245	3,408
			monthly	5,509	5,784	6,074	6,377	6,697	7,032	7,383
			annual	66,103	69,410	72,883	76,529	80,358	84,378	88,598
MAINTENANCE SPECIALIST	NON	61	hourly	27.09	28.44	29.87	31.36	32.93	34.58	36.31
			bi-weekly	2,167	2,276	2,389	2,509	2,634	2,766	2,905
			monthly	4,695	4,930	5,177	5,436	5,708	5,994	6,293
			annual	56,344	59,163	62,123	65,232	68,495	71,922	75,520
MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN I	NON	48	hourly	23.79	24.98	26.23	27.54	28.92	30.37	31.89
			bi-weekly	1,903	1,998	2,098	2,203	2,314	2,429	2,551
			monthly	4,124	4,330	4,547	4,774	5,013	5,264	5,527
			annual	49,482	51,959	54,559	57,288	60,155	63,165	66,325
MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN II	NON	57	hourly	26.03	27.33	28.70	30.13	31.64	33.22	34.89
			bi-weekly	2,082	2,186	2,296	2,411	2,531	2,658	2,791
			monthly	4,511	4,737	4,974	5,223	5,484	5,759	6,047
			annual	54,137	56,846	59,691	62,677	65,813	69,106	72,563
MANAGEMENT ANALYST	NON	107	hourly	42.87	45.01	47.27	49.63	52.11	54.72	57.46
			bi-weekly	3,430	3,601	3,781	3,970	4,169	4,378	4,596
			monthly	7,431	7,802	8,193	8,603	9,033	9,485	9,959
			annual	89,169	93,629	98,313	103,230	108,394	113,815	119,508
MENTAL HEALTH CLINICIAN	NON	106	hourly	42.44	44.57	46.80	49.14	51.60	54.18	56.89
			bi-weekly	3,396	3,565	3,744	3,931	4,128	4,334	4,551
			monthly	7,357	7,725	8,111	8,517	8,943	9,391	9,860
			annual	88,284	92,700	97,337	102,206	107,318	112,686	118,322
MULTIMEDIA SPECIALIST	NON	87	hourly	35.12	36.87	38.72	40.65	42.69	44.82	47.06
			bi-weekly	2,809	2,950	3,097	3,252	3,415	3,586	3,765
			monthly	6,087	6,391	6,711	7,047	7,399	7,769	8,158
			annual	73,041	76,695	80,531	84,560	88,790	93,232	97,895

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
NETWORK ENGINEER	NON	110	hourly	44.17	46.38	48.70	51.14	53.70	56.38	59.20
			bi-weekly	3,534	3,711	3,896	4,091	4,296	4,510	4,736
			monthly	7,656	8,039	8,442	8,864	9,307	9,773	10,261
			annual	91,877	96,473	101,298	106,365	111,686	117,272	123,137
OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR	NON	119	hourly	48.32	50.74	53.27	55.94	58.74	61.67	64.76
			bi-weekly	3,866	4,059	4,262	4,475	4,699	4,934	5,181
			monthly	8,375	8,794	9,234	9,696	10,181	10,690	11,225
			annual	100,503	105,531	110,809	116,352	122,171	128,282	134,698
PARALEGAL	NON	77	hourly	31.78	33.37	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.57	42.60
			bi-weekly	2,542	2,670	2,803	2,943	3,091	3,245	3,408
			monthly	5,509	5,784	6,074	6,377	6,697	7,032	7,383
			annual	66,103	69,410	72,883	76,529	80,358	84,378	88,598
PAYROLL TECHNICIAN	NON	63	hourly	27.64	29.02	30.47	31.99	33.59	35.28	37.04
			bi-weekly	2,211	2,321	2,438	2,560	2,688	2,822	2,963
			monthly	4,790	5,030	5,281	5,546	5,823	6,114	6,420
			annual	57,481	60,357	63,377	66,547	69,877	73,373	77,043
PERMIT PROCESSING COORDINATOR	NON	87	hourly	35.12	36.87	38.72	40.65	42.69	44.82	47.06
			bi-weekly	2,809	2,950	3,097	3,252	3,415	3,586	3,765
			monthly	6,087	6,391	6,711	7,047	7,399	7,769	8,158
			annual	73,041	76,695	80,531	84,560	88,790	93,232	97,895
PLANNING MANAGER	NON	128	hourly	52.85	55.50	58.27	61.19	64.25	67.46	70.84
			bi-weekly	4,228	4,440	4,662	4,895	5,140	5,397	5,667
			monthly	9,162	9,620	10,101	10,606	11,137	11,694	12,279
			annual	109,938	115,437	121,211	127,274	133,640	140,324	147,342
POLICE ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER	NON	122	hourly	49.79	52.28	54.89	57.64	60.52	63.55	66.73
			bi-weekly	3,983	4,182	4,391	4,611	4,842	5,084	5,338
			monthly	8,630	9,061	9,515	9,990	10,490	11,015	11,566
			annual	103,555	108,735	114,174	119,884	125,881	132,177	138,788
POLICE EQUIPMENT/SUPPLY TECH	NON	48	hourly	23.79	24.98	26.23	27.54	28.92	30.37	31.89
			bi-weekly	1,903	1,998	2,098	2,203	2,314	2,429	2,551
			monthly	4,124	4,330	4,547	4,774	5,013	5,264	5,527
			annual	49,482	51,959	54,559	57,288	60,155	63,165	66,325

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
POLICE OFFICER	POA	PI	hourly	39.57	41.55	43.63	45.81	48.10	50.50	53.03
			bi-weekly	3,166	3,324	3,490	3,665	3,848	4,040	4,242
			monthly	6,859	7,202	7,562	7,940	8,337	8,754	9,192
			annual	82,308	86,424	90,744	95,281	100,045	105,048	110,300
POLICE RECRUIT	NON	56	hourly	25.77	27.06	28.41				
			bi-weekly	2,062	2,165	2,273				
			monthly	4,467	4,690	4,925				
			annual	53,599	56,281	59,097				
POLICE RECORDS MANAGER	NON	102	hourly	40.78	42.82	44.97	47.22	49.58	52.06	54.66
			bi-weekly	3,263	3,426	3,597	3,777	3,966	4,165	4,373
			monthly	7,069	7,423	7,794	8,184	8,593	9,023	9,475
			annual	84,831	89,074	93,530	98,209	103,121	108,279	113,695
POLICE RECORDS SUPERVISOR	NON	70	hourly	29.64	31.12	32.68	34.31	36.03	37.83	39.72
			bi-weekly	2,371	2,489	2,614	2,745	2,882	3,026	3,178
			monthly	5,137	5,394	5,664	5,947	6,245	6,557	6,885
			annual	61,642	64,726	67,964	71,365	74,935	78,684	82,620
POLICE RECORDS TECHNICIAN I	NON	41	hourly	22.18	23.29	24.46	25.68	26.97	28.32	29.73
			bi-weekly	1,775	1,863	1,957	2,055	2,157	2,265	2,379
			monthly	3,845	4,037	4,239	4,452	4,674	4,908	5,154
			annual	46,139	48,448	50,873	53,418	56,091	58,898	61,845
POLICE RECORDS TECHNICIAN II	NON	56	hourly	25.77	27.06	28.41	29.83	31.33	32.89	34.54
			bi-weekly	2,062	2,165	2,273	2,387	2,506	2,632	2,763
			monthly	4,467	4,690	4,925	5,171	5,430	5,702	5,987
			annual	53,599	56,281	59,097	62,054	65,159	68,419	71,842
POLICE SERGEANT	POA	PJ	hourly	50.38	52.90	55.54	58.32	61.24	64.30	67.51
			bi-weekly	4,030	4,232	4,443	4,666	4,899	5,144	5,401
			monthly	8,732	9,169	9,627	10,109	10,614	11,145	11,702
			annual	104,789	110,028	115,529	121,306	127,371	133,740	140,427
POLICE SERVICES ANALYST	NON	87	hourly	35.12	36.87	38.72	40.65	42.69	44.82	47.06
			bi-weekly	2,809	2,950	3,097	3,252	3,415	3,586	3,765
			monthly	6,087	6,391	6,711	7,047	7,399	7,769	8,158
			annual	73,041	76,695	80,531	84,560	88,790	93,232	97,895
POLICE SERVICES TECHNICIAN		PI	hourly	41.20						

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
POLICE VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR	NON	63	hourly	27.64	29.02	30.47	31.99	33.59	35.28	37.04
			bi-weekly	2,211	2,321	2,438	2,560	2,688	2,822	2,963
			monthly	4,790	5,030	5,281	5,546	5,823	6,114	6,420
			annual	57,481	60,357	63,377	66,547	69,877	73,373	77,043
PROPERTY AND EVIDENCE MANAGER	NON	102	hourly	40.78	42.82	44.97	47.22	49.58	52.06	54.66
			bi-weekly	3,263	3,426	3,597	3,777	3,966	4,165	4,373
			monthly	7,069	7,423	7,794	8,184	8,593	9,023	9,475
			annual	84,831	89,074	93,530	98,209	103,121	108,279	113,695
PROPERTY AND EVIDENCE TECHNICIAN I	NON	56	hourly	25.77	27.06	28.41	29.83	31.33	32.89	34.54
			bi-weekly	2,062	2,165	2,273	2,387	2,506	2,632	2,763
			monthly	4,467	4,690	4,925	5,171	5,430	5,702	5,987
			annual	53,599	56,281	59,097	62,054	65,159	68,419	71,842
PROPERTY AND EVIDENCE TECHNICIAN II	NON	70	hourly	29.64	31.12	32.68	34.31	36.03	37.83	39.72
			bi-weekly	2,371	2,489	2,614	2,745	2,882	3,026	3,178
			monthly	5,137	5,394	5,664	5,947	6,245	6,557	6,885
			annual	61,642	64,726	67,964	71,365	74,935	78,684	82,620
PUBLIC AFFAIRS MANAGER	NON	126	hourly	51.81	54.40	57.12	59.98	62.98	66.13	69.44
			bi-weekly	4,145	4,352	4,570	4,799	5,039	5,291	5,555
			monthly	8,981	9,430	9,902	10,397	10,917	11,463	12,036
			annual	107,768	113,159	118,819	124,762	131,002	137,554	144,433
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER	NON	169	hourly	79.53	83.51	87.68	92.07	96.67	101.51	106.59
			bi-weekly	6,362	6,681	7,015	7,366	7,734	8,121	8,527
			monthly	13,785	14,475	15,199	15,959	16,757	17,595	18,475
			annual	165,424	173,697	182,384	191,505	201,082	211,138	221,697
PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION MANAGER-ENGINEERING	NON	134	hourly	56.11	58.92	61.87	64.96	68.21	71.62	75.20
			bi-weekly	4,489	4,714	4,949	5,197	5,457	5,730	6,016
			monthly	9,726	10,213	10,724	11,260	11,823	12,414	13,035
			annual	116,714	122,552	128,682	135,118	141,876	148,972	156,422
PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTOR I	NON	77	hourly	31.78	33.37	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.57	42.60
			bi-weekly	2,542	2,670	2,803	2,943	3,091	3,245	3,408
			monthly	5,509	5,784	6,074	6,377	6,697	7,032	7,383
			annual	66,103	69,410	72,883	76,529	80,358	84,378	88,598

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTOR II	NON	83	hourly	33.74	35.43	37.20	39.06	41.02	43.07	45.22
			bi-weekly	2,699	2,834	2,976	3,125	3,281	3,446	3,618
			monthly	5,849	6,141	6,448	6,771	7,110	7,465	7,839
			annual	70,183	73,694	77,380	81,251	85,316	89,584	94,065
PURCHASING SPECIALIST	NON	63	hourly	27.64	29.02	30.47	31.99	33.59	35.28	37.04
			bi-weekly	2,211	2,321	2,438	2,560	2,688	2,822	2,963
			monthly	4,790	5,030	5,281	5,546	5,823	6,114	6,420
			annual	57,481	60,357	63,377	66,547	69,877	73,373	77,043
PURCHASING AND CONTRACTS MANAGER	NON	126	hourly	51.81	54.40	57.12	59.98	62.98	66.13	69.44
			bi-weekly	4,145	4,352	4,570	4,799	5,039	5,291	5,555
			monthly	8,981	9,430	9,902	10,397	10,917	11,463	12,036
			annual	107,768	113,159	118,819	124,762	131,002	137,554	144,433
REAL ESTATE MANAGER	NON	117	hourly	47.36	49.73	52.22	54.83	57.58	60.46	63.48
			bi-weekly	3,789	3,979	4,178	4,387	4,606	4,837	5,078
			monthly	8,210	8,621	9,052	9,505	9,980	10,479	11,003
			annual	98,519	103,447	108,621	114,055	119,759	125,749	132,039
REAL-TIME INFORMATION CENTER ANALYST	NON	97	hourly	38.80	40.74	42.78	44.92	47.17	49.53	52.00
			bi-weekly	3,104	3,259	3,422	3,594	3,773	3,962	4,160
			monthly	6,725	7,062	7,415	7,786	8,175	8,584	9,014
			annual	80,704	84,741	88,980	93,431	98,105	103,012	108,165
REAL-TIME INFORMATION CENTER MANAGER	NON	117	hourly	47.36	49.73	52.22	54.83	57.58	60.46	63.48
			bi-weekly	3,789	3,979	4,178	4,387	4,606	4,837	5,078
			monthly	8,210	8,621	9,052	9,505	9,980	10,479	11,003
			annual	98,519	103,447	108,621	114,055	119,759	125,749	132,039
REAL-TIME INFORMATION CENTER OPERATOR	NON	56	hourly	25.77	27.06	28.41	29.83	31.33	32.89	34.54
			bi-weekly	2,062	2,165	2,273	2,387	2,506	2,632	2,763
			monthly	4,467	4,690	4,925	5,171	5,430	5,702	5,987
			annual	53,599	56,281	59,097	62,054	65,159	68,419	71,842
REAL-TIME INFORMATION CENTER SPECIALIST	NON	76	hourly	31.46	33.04	34.69	36.43	38.25	40.16	42.17
			bi-weekly	2,517	2,643	2,775	2,914	3,060	3,213	3,374
			monthly	5,454	5,727	6,013	6,314	6,630	6,962	7,310
			annual	65,447	68,721	72,159	75,769	79,560	83,540	87,719

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
RECEPTIONIST	NON	24	hourly	18.71	19.65	20.64	21.67	22.75	23.89	25.09
			bi-weekly	1,497	1,572	1,651	1,733	1,820	1,911	2,007
			monthly	3,244	3,406	3,577	3,756	3,944	4,141	4,348
			annual	38,927	40,875	42,921	45,069	47,325	49,693	52,180
RECYCLING AND WASTE MANAGER	NON	129	hourly	53.38	56.05	58.86	61.80	64.89	68.14	71.55
			bi-weekly	4,271	4,484	4,709	4,944	5,191	5,451	5,724
			monthly	9,253	9,716	10,202	10,712	11,248	11,811	12,402
			annual	111,040	116,594	122,426	128,549	134,978	141,729	148,818
RECYCLING COORDINATOR I	NON	82	hourly	33.41	35.08	36.83	38.68	40.61	42.64	44.77
			bi-weekly	2,673	2,806	2,947	3,094	3,249	3,411	3,582
			monthly	5,791	6,080	6,384	6,704	7,039	7,391	7,761
			annual	69,486	72,962	76,612	80,445	84,469	88,694	93,131
RECYCLING COORDINATOR II	NON	92	hourly	36.91	38.76	40.70	42.73	44.87	47.12	49.47
			bi-weekly	2,953	3,101	3,256	3,419	3,590	3,769	3,958
			monthly	6,398	6,718	7,054	7,407	7,778	8,167	8,575
			annual	76,777	80,618	84,651	88,885	93,331	98,000	102,902
REGISTERED VETERINARY TECHNICIAN	NON	56	hourly	25.77	27.06	28.41	29.83	31.33	32.89	34.54
			bi-weekly	2,062	2,165	2,273	2,387	2,506	2,632	2,763
			monthly	4,467	4,690	4,925	5,171	5,430	5,702	5,987
			annual	53,599	56,281	59,097	62,054	65,159	68,419	71,842
RISK ANALYST	NON	97	hourly	38.80	40.74	42.78	44.92	47.17	49.53	52.00
			bi-weekly	3,104	3,259	3,422	3,594	3,773	3,962	4,160
			monthly	6,725	7,062	7,415	7,786	8,175	8,584	9,014
			annual	80,704	84,741	88,980	93,431	98,105	103,012	108,165
RISK MANAGER	NON	117	hourly	47.36	49.73	52.22	54.83	57.58	60.46	63.48
			bi-weekly	3,789	3,979	4,178	4,387	4,606	4,837	5,078
			monthly	8,210	8,621	9,052	9,505	9,980	10,479	11,003
			annual	98,519	103,447	108,621	114,055	119,759	125,749	132,039
SECURITY OFFICER	NON	56	hourly	25.77	27.06	28.41	29.83	31.33	32.89	34.54
			bi-weekly	2,062	2,165	2,273	2,387	2,506	2,632	2,763
			monthly	4,467	4,690	4,925	5,171	5,430	5,702	5,987
						,	,	,	,	

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
SECURITY OFFICER (Y-RATED)	NON	56	hourly	37.46						<u> </u>
			bi-weekly	2,997						
			monthly	6,493						
			annual	77,913						
SR. ACCOUNTANT	NON	96	hourly	38.41	40.34	42.35	44.47	46.70	49.03	51.49
			bi-weekly	3,073	3,227	3,388	3,558	3,736	3,923	4,119
			monthly	6,659	6,992	7,341	7,709	8,094	8,499	8,924
			annual	79,903	83,900	88,097	92,504	97,131	101,989	107,091
SR. ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN	NON	66	hourly	28.48	29.90	31.40	32.97	34.62	36.35	38.17
			bi-weekly	2,278	2,392	2,512	2,637	2,769	2,908	3,053
			monthly	4,936	5,183	5,442	5,714	6,000	6,300	6,616
			annual	59,229	62,192	65,304	68,571	72,001	75,604	79,386
SR. ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT	NON	63	hourly	27.64	29.02	30.47	31.99	33.59	35.28	37.04
			bi-weekly	2,211	2,321	2,438	2,560	2,688	2,822	2,963
			monthly	4,790	5,030	5,281	5,546	5,823	6,114	6,420
			annual	57,481	60,357	63,377	66,547	69,877	73,373	77,043
SR. ANIMAL CARE SPECIALIST	NON	48	hourly	23.79	24.98	26.23	27.54	28.92	30.37	31.89
			bi-weekly	1,903	1,998	2,098	2,203	2,314	2,429	2,551
			monthly	4,124	4,330	4,547	4,774	5,013	5,264	5,527
			annual	49,482	51,959	54,559	57,288	60,155	63,165	66,325
SR. ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER	POA	PC	hourly	27.89	29.29	30.75	32.29	33.90	35.60	37.38
			bi-weekly	2,231	2,343	2,460	2,583	2,712	2,848	2,990
			monthly	4,835	5,076	5,330	5,596	5,876	6,170	6,479
			annual	58,014	60,914	63,960	67,157	70,515	74,041	77,744
SR. CIVIL ENGINEER	NON	122	hourly	49.79	52.28	54.89	57.64	60.52	63.55	66.73
			bi-weekly	3,983	4,182	4,391	4,611	4,842	5,084	5,338
			monthly	8,630	9,061	9,515	9,990	10,490	11,015	11,566
			annual	103,555	108,735	114,174	119,884	125,881	132,177	138,788
SR. CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER	NON	83	hourly	33.74	35.43	37.20	39.06	41.02	43.07	45.22
			bi-weekly	2,699	2,834	2,976	3,125	3,281	3,446	3,618
			monthly	5,849	6,141	6,448	6,771	7,110	7,465	7,839
			annual	70,183	73,694	77,380	81,251	85,316	89,584	94,065

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
SR. CUSTOMER SERVICE SPECIALIST	NON	56	hourly	25.77	27.06	28.41	29.83	31.33	32.89	34.54
			bi-weekly	2,062	2,165	2,273	2,387	2,506	2,632	2,763
			monthly	4,467	4,690	4,925	5,171	5,430	5,702	5,987
			annual	53,599	56,281	59,097	62,054	65,159	68,419	71,842
SR. DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY	NON	145	hourly	62.61	65.75	69.03	72.49	76.11	79.92	83.92
			bi-weekly	5,009	5,260	5,523	5,799	6,089	6,394	6,713
			monthly	10,853	11,396	11,966	12,565	13,193	13,853	14,546
			annual	130,238	136,752	143,592	150,774	158,314	166,232	174,546
SR. ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN	NON	82	hourly	33.41	35.08	36.83	38.68	40.61	42.64	44.77
			bi-weekly	2,673	2,806	2,947	3,094	3,249	3,411	3,582
			monthly	5,791	6,080	6,384	6,704	7,039	7,391	7,761
			annual	69,486	72,962	76,612	80,445	84,469	88,694	93,131
SR. FACILITIES TECHNICIAN	NON	71	hourly	29.93	31.43	33.00	34.65	36.39	38.21	40.12
			bi-weekly	2,395	2,514	2,640	2,772	2,911	3,057	3,210
			monthly	5,188	5,448	5,721	6,007	6,307	6,623	6,954
			annual	62,260	65,375	68,646	72,080	75,687	79,473	83,449
SR. FINANCE AND BUDGET ANALYST	NON	119	hourly	48.32	50.74	53.27	55.94	58.74	61.67	64.76
			bi-weekly	3,866	4,059	4,262	4,475	4,699	4,934	5,181
			monthly	8,375	8,794	9,234	9,696	10,181	10,690	11,225
			annual	100,503	105,531	110,809	116,352	122,171	128,282	134,698
SR. GIS ANALYST	NON	97	hourly	38.80	40.74	42.78	44.92	47.17	49.53	52.00
			bi-weekly	3,104	3,259	3,422	3,594	3,773	3,962	4,160
			monthly	6,725	7,062	7,415	7,786	8,175	8,584	9,014
			annual	80,704	84,741	88,980	93,431	98,105	103,012	108,165
SR. HUMAN RESOURCES ANALYST	NON	107	hourly	42.87	45.01	47.27	49.63	52.11	54.72	57.46
			bi-weekly	3,430	3,601	3,781	3,970	4,169	4,378	4,596
			monthly	7,431	7,802	8,193	8,603	9,033	9,485	9,959
			annual	89,169	93,629	98,313	103,230	108,394	113,815	119,508
SR. HUMAN RESOURCES SPECIALIST	NON	87	hourly	35.12	36.87	38.72	40.65	42.69	44.82	47.06
			bi-weekly	2,809	2,950	3,097	3,252	3,415	3,586	3,765
			monthly	6,087	6,391	6,711	7,047	7,399	7,769	8,158
			annual	73,041	76,695	80,531	84,560	88,790	93,232	97,895

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
SR. IT ANALYST	NON	106	hourly	42.44	44.57	46.80	49.14	51.60	54.18	56.89
			bi-weekly	3,396	3,565	3,744	3,931	4,128	4,334	4,551
			monthly	7,357	7,725	8,111	8,517	8,943	9,391	9,860
			annual	88,284	92,700	97,337	102,206	107,318	112,686	118,322
SR. MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN	NON	71	hourly	29.93	31.43	33.00	34.65	36.39	38.21	40.12
			bi-weekly	2,395	2,514	2,640	2,772	2,911	3,057	3,210
			monthly	5,188	5,448	5,721	6,007	6,307	6,623	6,954
			annual	62,260	65,375	68,646	72,080	75,687	79,473	83,449
SR. PAYROLL TECHNICIAN	NON	77	hourly	31.78	33.37	35.04	36.79	38.63	40.57	42.60
			bi-weekly	2,542	2,670	2,803	2,943	3,091	3,245	3,408
			monthly	5,509	5,784	6,074	6,377	6,697	7,032	7,383
			annual	66,103	69,410	72,883	76,529	80,358	84,378	88,598
SR. PLANNER	NON	107	hourly	42.87	45.01	47.27	49.63	52.11	54.72	57.46
			bi-weekly	3,430	3,601	3,781	3,970	4,169	4,378	4,596
			monthly	7,431	7,802	8,193	8,603	9,033	9,485	9,959
			annual	89,169	93,629	98,313	103,230	108,394	113,815	119,508
SR. TRANSPORTATION PLANNER	NON	107	hourly	42.87	45.01	47.27	49.63	52.11	54.72	57.46
			bi-weekly	3,430	3,601	3,781	3,970	4,169	4,378	4,596
			monthly	7,431	7,802	8,193	8,603	9,033	9,485	9,959
			annual	89,169	93,629	98,313	103,230	108,394	113,815	119,508
STRATEGIC PLANNING AND INNOVATION PROGRAM MANAGER	NON	119	hourly	48.32	50.74	53.27	55.94	58.74	61.67	64.76
			bi-weekly	3,866	4,059	4,262	4,475	4,699	4,934	5,181
			monthly	8,375	8,794	9,234	9,696	10,181	10,690	11,225
			annual	100,503	105,531	110,809	116,352	122,171	128,282	134,698
STREET MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR	NON	97	hourly	38.80	40.74	42.78	44.92	47.17	49.53	52.00
			bi-weekly	3,104	3,259	3,422	3,594	3,773	3,962	4,160
			monthly	6,725	7,062	7,415	7,786	8,175	8,584	9,014
			annual	80,704	84,741	88,980	93,431	98,105	103,012	108,165
STREET SWEEPER OPERATOR	NON	61	hourly	27.09	28.44	29.87	31.36	32.93	34.58	36.31
			bi-weekly	2,167	2,276	2,389	2,509	2,634	2,766	2,905
			monthly	4,695	4,930	5,177	5,436	5,708	5,994	6,293
			annual	56,344	59,163	62,123	65,232	68,495	71,922	75,520

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
SUPERVISING FORENSIC INVESTIGATOR	POA	PR	hourly	43.90	46.09	48.40	50.82	53.36	56.03	58.83
			bi-weekly	3,512	3,688	3,872	4,066	4,269	4,482	4,706
			monthly	7,609	7,990	8,389	8,809	9,249	9,712	10,197
			annual	91,312	95,877	100,671	105,704	110,990	116,539	122,365
STUDENT INTERN	N/A	7	hourly	15.79	16.58	17.41	18.28	19.19	20.15	21.16
TRAFFIC CONTROL AND STREET LIGHTING SUPERVISOR	NON	97	hourly	38.80	40.74	42.78	44.92	47.17	49.53	52.00
			bi-weekly	3,104	3,259	3,422	3,594	3,773	3,962	4,160
			monthly	6,725	7,062	7,415	7,786	8,175	8,584	9,014
			annual	80,704	84,741	88,980	93,431	98,105	103,012	108,165
TRAFFIC ENGINEER	NON	125	hourly	51.30	53.86	56.56	59.39	62.36	65.48	68.75
			bi-weekly	4,104	4,309	4,525	4,751	4,989	5,238	5,500
			monthly	8,892	9,336	9,803	10,294	10,809	11,349	11,917
			annual	106,699	112,036	117,640	123,524	129,702	136,189	143,001
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT CENTER SUPERVISOR	NON	119	hourly	48.32	50.74	53.27	55.94	58.74	61.67	64.76
			bi-weekly	3,866	4,059	4,262	4,475	4,699	4,934	5,181
			monthly	8,375	8,794	9,234	9,696	10,181	10,690	11,225
			annual	100,503	105,531	110,809	116,352	122,171	128,282	134,698
TRAFFIC SIGNAL TECHNICIAN I	NON	71	hourly	29.93	31.43	33.00	34.65	36.39	38.21	40.12
			bi-weekly	2,395	2,514	2,640	2,772	2,911	3,057	3,210
			monthly	5,188	5,448	5,721	6,007	6,307	6,623	6,954
			annual	62,260	65,375	68,646	72,080	75,687	79,473	83,449
TRAFFIC SIGNAL TECHNICIAN II	NON	81	hourly	33.08	34.73	36.47	38.29	40.21	42.22	44.33
			bi-weekly	2,646	2,778	2,917	3,063	3,217	3,377	3,546
			monthly	5,733	6,020	6,321	6,637	6,969	7,318	7,684
			annual	68,796	72,237	75,851	79,646	83,630	87,814	92,207
UTILITIES LOCATOR	NON	70	hourly	29.64	31.12	32.68	34.31	36.03	37.83	39.72
			bi-weekly	2,371	2,489	2,614	2,745	2,882	3,026	3,178
			monthly	5,137	5,394	5,664	5,947	6,245	6,557	6,885
			annual	61,642	64,726	67,964	71,365	74,935	78,684	82,620
VETERINARIAN	NON	117	hourly	47.36	49.73	52.22	54.83	57.58	60.46	63.48
			bi-weekly	3,789	3,979	4,178	4,387	4,606	4,837	5,078
			monthly	8,210	8,621	9,052	9,505	9,980	10,479	11,003
			annual	98,519	103,447	108,621	114,055	119,759	125,749	132,039

EFFECTIVE: 7/2/2023

CLASSIFICATION	UNIT	GRADE		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
VETERINARY ASSISTANT	NON	34	hourly	20.68	21.72	22.81	23.95	25.14	26.40	27.72
			bi-weekly	1,655	1,737	1,824	1,916	2,012	2,112	2,218
			monthly	3,585	3,765	3,953	4,151	4,358	4,577	4,806
			annual	43,021	45,174	47,435	49,809	52,301	54,918	57,666

## CERTIFICATION ELK GROVE CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2023-137

STATE OF CALIFORNIA	)	
COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO	)	ss
CITY OF ELK GROVE	)	

I, Jason Lindgren, City Clerk of the City of Elk Grove, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced, approved, and adopted by the City Council of the City of Elk Grove at a regular meeting of said Council held on June 28, 2023 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS: Singh-Allen, Spease, Brewer, Robles, Suen

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: None

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: None

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: None

Jason Lindgren, City Clerk City of Elk Grove, California